DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MEETING
WEDNESDAY, MAY 17, 2017; 3:00 p.m.

DANIEL L. GOODWIN FLIGHT CENTER BUILDING
FIRST FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
2700 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE
WEST CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60185

TENTATIVE AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
PUBLIC COMMENT
APPROVAL OF MINUTES TAB #1 PAGE #4

March 8, 2017 Regular Board Meeting

March 8, 2017 Capital Development, Leasing
and Customer Fees Committee

March 30, 2017 Special Capital Development, Leasing
and Customer Fees Committee

April 20, 2017 Special Capital Development, Leasing
and Customer Fees Committee

March 8, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting

March 8, 2017 Golf Committee Meeting

April 26, 2017 Special Internal Policy and Compliance
Committee Meeting

DIRECTOR’S REPORT TAB #2 PAGE #27
REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TAB #3 PAGE #31

REPORT OF OFFICERS/COMMITTEES

Finance, Budget & Audit Committee

Capital Development, Leasing & Customer Fees Committee
Internal Policy and Compliance Committee

Golf Committee

DuPage Business Center

® oo ow



NEW BUSINESS

a.

Presentation and Review of the Annual Financial Audit.
FINANCE {Audit Report Provided Under Separate Cover)

Proposed Ordinance 2017-311; Amending the DuPage Airport Authority
Procurement Policy.

Provides exceptions to allow certain types of contracts to be extended by the
Board of Commissioners for an additional period of time.

poLicy TAB #4 PAGE #41

Proposed Ordinance 2017-312; Amending the DuPage Airport Authority
Employee Handbook.

Incorporates criminal history records check procedures for employees who require
unescorted access to the Airport Operations Areq.

poLicy TAB #5 PAGE #47

Proposed Resolution 2017-2092; Award of Contract to Voris Mechanical, Inc. for
the Flight Center Boiler Replacement Project.

Approves a contract for the replacement of the boilers, hot water pumps, and
retrofit of the variable air volume boxes at the DuPage Flight Center. Total
authorized construction cost not-to-exceed $471,625 which includes a 10%
owner’s contingency.

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT TAB #6 PAGE #60

Proposed Resolution 2017-2093: Authorizing the Execution of a Change Order to
Task Order No. 48 with CH2M for the Project: Hangar Apron Pavement Repair.
Approves a Change Order in the amount of §9,966.82 for additional survey and
design resulting in a new Contract amount not-to-exceed $22,666.82.

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT TAB #7 PAGE #65

Proposed Resolution 2017-2094; Ratifying the Execution by the Executive
Director of GSA Lease Amendment No. 1 to GS-05B-18903 with the Government
of the United States of America.

Ratifies the action of the Executive Director for the execution of a lease with the
Government of the United States of America to continue leasing hangar and office
space for a 3-year term, one year firm. Total lease payments over the firm term
will be 544,568.

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT TAB #8 PAGE #68

Proposed Resolution 2017-2095; Authorizing the Execution of Supplement to
Lease with the United States of America.

Authorizes execution by the Execution Director of a Supplemental Lease
Agreement with the United States of America to exercise their option to extend the
lease for the Airport traffic control tower for a year-to-year term ending
September 30, 2036.

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT TAB #9 PAGE #71



10.

11,

12.

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE DISCUSSION OF PENDING, PROBABLE OR
IMMINENT LITIGATION; EMPLOYEE MATTERS; THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL
PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY AND THE SETTING OF
A PRICE FOR SALE OR LEASE OF PROPERTY OWNED BY THE DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY.

RECONVENE REGULAR SESSION

OTHER BUSINESS

a.

Proposed Resolution 2017-2096; Authorizing the Execution of an
Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of West Chicago Providing for the
Dedication for Purposes of a Public Road of Certain Real Estate Near Powis Road
and Smith Road in West Chicago, lllinois.
Authorizing the Executive Director to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement
with the City of West Chicago, Illinois in which the Authority will dedicate certain
Authority owned land near the intersection of Powis Road and Smith Road to the
City of West Chicago for use as a public roadway and grants Authority rights to use
the dedicated property.

TAB #10 PAGE #75

Proposed Resolution 2017-2097; Authorizing the Execution of Early Lease
Termination Agreement with CenterPoint Properties Trust.

Authorizes the Executive Director to execute an Early Termination and Release
Agreement which releases both the Authority and CenterPoint Properties Trust
from any further obligations under the Amended and Restated Agreement to
Develop and Lease pertaining to the property known as the DuPage Business
Center. TAB #11 PAGE #85

Proposed Resolution 2017-2098; Authorizing Publication of Notice Requesting
Offers to Purchase Authority Real Property.
Authorizes the Executive Director to publish a notice requesting offers to purchase
Authority owned developable property in the DuPage Business Center.

TAB #12 PAGE #86

Proposed Resolution 2017-2099; Approving Exception to Competitive Bidding
Requirements and Authorizing the Execution of a Cash Farm Lease with Donald
and Beth Young for Authority Property at Smith Road and Powis Road.
Authorizes execution of a Cash Farm Lease for a term of one year with Donald and
Beth Young for property recently acquired by the Authority. Total lease payment
will be $32,273. TAB #13 PAGE #109

ADJOURNMENT



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Wednesday, March 8, 2017

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority was convened at the
Daniel L. Goodwin Flight Center Building, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago, lllinois, First Floor
Conference Room; Wednesday, March 8, 2017. Chairman Davis called the meeting to order at 3:15 p.m.
and a quorum was present for the meeting.

Commissioners Present: Chavez, Davis, Donnelly, Huizenga, LaMantia, Ledonne, Sharp.
Commissioners Absent: Posch, Wagner.

DuPage Airport Authority Staff Present: David Bird, Executive Director; Mark Doles, Director of Aviation
Facilities and Properties; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing Golf Club; Dan Barna,
Operations and Capital Programs Manager; Brian DeCoudres, Flight Center General Manager; Pamela
Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others in Attendarice: Phil Luetkehans, Schirott, Luetkehans and Garner; Michael Vonic, CH2M; Brian
Quinlan, Burns & McDonnell; Michael Toth, JWI, Inc.; Mark Shoonveld, JwI Inc.; Ed Harrington,
CenterPoint Properties Trust.

Members of the Press:
None

PUBLIC COMMENT
None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the January 18, 2017 Regular Board
Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Huizenga made a MOTION to approve the minutes of the
January 18, 2017 Regular Board Meeting and Commissioner Sharp seconded the motion. The motion was
passed unanimously by roll call vote (6-0). Commissioner LaMantia was not present for the vote.

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the January 18, 2017 Finance, Budget
and Audit Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Ledonne made a MOTION to approve
the minutes of the January 18, 2017 Finance, Budget and Audit Committee Meeting and Commissioner
Sharp seconded the motion. The motion was passed unanimously by roll call vote {(6-0). Commissioner
LaMantia was not present for the vote.

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the January 18, 2017 Capital
Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner
Ledonne made a MOTION to approve the minutes of the January 18, 2017 Capital Development, Leasing
and Customer Fees Committee Meeting and Commissioner Sharp seconded the motion. The motion was
passed unanimously by roll call vote (6-0). Commissioner LaMantia was not present for the vote.

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the January 20, 2017 Special Capital
Development Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Sharp made a MOTION to
approve the minutes of the January 20, 2017 Special Capital Development Committee Meeting and



Commissioner Chavez seconded the motion. The motion was passed unanimously by roll call vote (6-0).
Commissioner LaMantia was not present for the vote.

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the February 16, 2017 Special Capital
Development Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Sharp made a MOTION to
approve the minutes of the February 16, 2017 Special Capital Development Committee Meeting and
Commissioner Ledonne seconded the motion. The mation was passed unanimously by roll call vote (6-0).
Commissioner LaMantia was not present for the vote.

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the January 4, 2017 Internal Policy
and Compliance Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Ledonne made a MOTION to
approve the minutes of the January 4, 2017 Internal Policy and Compliance Committee Meeting and
Commissioner Sharp seconded the motion. The motion was passed unanimously by roll call vote (6-0).
Commissioner LaMantia was not present for the vote.

Commissioner LaMantia arrived at 3:24 p.m.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Executive Director Bird discussed the monthly operating statistics:

Fuel Sales:

100LL sales were decreased for January; Jet A sales were increased. Total gallons sold Year-To-Date were
up 3.8%.

100 LL sales were up 17% for the month of February 2017 versus 2016. Jet A Fuel for February is up 4.4%
for the year; seeing some growth. Discussion continued

Operations:
Total operations across the country were soft for both January and February. Staff will continue to

monitor these trends.

Executive Director Bird reviewed a new report added to the Board Meeting Packet. This reports shows
rankings, in terms of operations, for all airports in lllinois having Air Traffic Control Towers. DuPage is
ranked the fourth busiest airport in lllinois after O’'Hare and Midway. Discussion followed.

Executive Director Bird reported the Airport Authority is working with the FAA Air Traffic Control Tower to
hold a Runway Safety Action Team (RSAT) meeting at DuPage. This regional group made up of
representatives from the FAA, West Chicago Fire Protection District, Airport Authority staff and other
interested parties will evaluate all safety aspects of the airfield. Presentations on various topics will be
made including the Airport Authority’s new drone program, Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF)
services, and the Airport’s extensive wildlife control program. Executive Director Bird advised this forum
will also provide a great marketing opportunity for the Airport Authority. Discussion continued briefly.

Executive Director Bird reported the Drone Program is now present on the Airport Authority’s webpage
and staff is already fielding questions. Copies of the new brochure will be circulated around local
communities, school districts and community events. Copies were provided for the Boards review.
Discussion followed.

Executive Director reviewed the selection process for updating the Airport Master Plan. Crawford,
Murphy and Tilly is the firm selected to undertake this project and has put together a very good team.
Crawford Murphy and Tilly (CMT) has done much work at the Airport for many years. Negotiations are in
progress and a fee for this project will be brought to the May Board Meeting along with an Independent
Fee Analysis to substantiate CMT’s fee proposal. Discussion continued.



Executive Director Bird added that all the traditional elements will be included in the master plan process
and CMT will also be asked to include the addition of a strategic plan component for setting goals and
options for the next 20 years. This is expected to be a multiyear project.

Chairman Davis referred to the 2013 DuPage Airport Authority Brochure and suggested that this brochure
be updated. Discussion followed.

Executive Director Bird stated the new transient hangar will be open after the Board Meeting for a
walk-through tour if anyone is interested.

Chairman Davis mentioned that he and Executive Director Bird recently attended the DuPage County
Board Meeting and provided an update and review of the Airport Authority. He stated that members of
the County Board were very receptive and there were no questions or comments following the
presentation. Executive Director Bird stated there was applause by Board members at the completion of
the presentation; it was a very positive reception by the County Board. Discussion followed.

Executive Director Bird asked Mike Toth of J. A. Watts Inc. to report on the Capital Improvement Program.
Mr. Toth introduced Mark Shoonveld who is the Executive Vice President of JWI. Mr. Toth advised the
topics to be covered in his report were the West Perimeter Road project; Transient Hangar construction
and May Board Meeting topics. Mr. Toth reported staff will be tracking 23 Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) projects for 2017. He added that some projects have not yet closed out but are anticipated
to be completed by the May Board Meeting and reported upon at that time. He stated that many
requests will be made at this Board Meeting for new projects in preparation for the construction season,
June through August. Budgeted expenditures for these projects were reviewed. Mr. Toth reported on
the West Perimeter Road Project and the progress and near completion of the new Transient Hangar.

He then provided a “look ahead” to the May Board Meeting and some of the anticipated projects to be
brought forth for Board consideration. Discussion followed.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Executive Director Bird asked Patrick Hoard to provide a review of the Financial Statements for February

2017 and discussion followed.

REPORT OF COMMITTEES

Finance, Budget and Audit Committee:

Commissioner Huizenga advised the Finance, Budget and Audit Committee met and the resolutions
appearing on the Board Meeting agenda were discussed and favorably recommended for Board approval.
He added the February Financial Statements were discussed as presented by Patrick Hoard

Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees:

Commissioner Chavez chaired the meeting in Committee Chairman Wagner’s absence and reported there
were nine items appearing on the Board Meeting Agenda. All proposed resolutions were reviewed and
discussed by the Committee and favorably recommended for passage by the Board.

Internal Policy and Compliance Committee:

Commissioner LaMantia advised the Internal Policy and Compliance Committee did not meet in March.
She referenced the Drone Policy brochure that was circulated earlier in the meeting and related this was a
recommendation from the January 4 Policy Committee Meeting. Discussion followed.

Golf Committee:
Commissioner Donnelly stated that the Golf Committee met prior to the Board Meeting. He added topics

reviewed were staffing, marketing efforts and weddings booked for 2017. Discussion followed.



DuPage Business Center:

Ed Harrington of CenterPoint Properties Trust provided an update on recent park activities and advised
CenterPoint is tracking six (6) deals currently for the Park. Discussion followed regarding marketing and
advertising efforts and the future vison for the Business Center. Chairman Davis emphasized the Board’s
continued desire to support CenterPoint in any way possible for development at the Business Center.

OLD BUSINESS
None

NEW BUSINESS
Proposed Resolution 2017-2076; Resolution Authorizing the Borrowing of Funds for the DuPage Airport

Authority and the Execution of a Loan Agreement with MB Financial Bank, N.A.

Authorizes the execution of a Loan Agreement with MB Financial Bank, N.A. which will allow the DuPage
Airport Authority to borrow short term funds in the event they are needed to achieve the Authorities 2017
Capital Improvement Program.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2076 and advised this was
considered by the Finance Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval. There was no

further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharp to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2076; Resolution
Authorizing the Borrowing of Funds for the DuPage Airport Authority and the Execution of a Loan
Agreement with MB Financial Bank, N.A. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Chavez and was
unanimously passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2077; Award of Bid to Burris Equipment Company for the Procurement of
Two (2) Golf Course Greens Rollers.
Approves the procurement of two (2) Smithco XL70 units for a total cost of $29,353 F.0.B. Prairie Landing

Golf Club.
Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2077 and advised this was

considered by the Finance Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval. There was no
further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Donnelly to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2077; Award of
Bid to Burris Equipment Company for the Procurement of Two (2) Golf Course Greens Rollers. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2078; Award of Bid to J.W. Turf, Inc. for the Procurement of One (1) Golf

Course Turf Aerator.

Approves the procurement of One (1) John Deere Aercore 1500 for a total cost of $21,995.27 F.0.8. Prairie
Landing Golf Club.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2078 and advised this was
considered by the Finance Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval. There was no

further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharp to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2078; Award of Bid
to J.W. Turf, Inc. for the Procurement of One (1) Golf Course Turf Aerator. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Donnelly and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (7-0).



Proposed Resolution 2017-2079; Award of a Tree Maintenance Services Contract to Clean Cut Tree
Services, Inc.

Approves a one (1) year Tree Maintenance Services Contract, subject to two (2) one (1) year extensions at
the sole discretion of the Authority. Annual cost of $10.617 (year 1), 510,829.34 (year 2), and 511,045.93
(vear 3).

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2079 and advised this was
considered by the Finance Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval. There was no

further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharp to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2079; Award of a
Tree Maintenance Services Contract to Clean Cut Tree Services, Inc. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Chavez and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Commissioner Ledonne complimented Dan Barna on his continued good job in handling the bidding
process. Bids being brought to the Board are consistently coming in at or below budget and saving
taxpayer dollars; all Board Members agreed.

Proposed Resolution 2017-2080; Award of Contract to Martam Construction for the SW Drainage
Project.

Approves a contract to construct approximately 2,500’ of 36” storm sewer to convey farm field
underdrainage. Total authorized construction cost not-to-exceed $325,582.13, which includes a 10%
owner’s contingency.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2080 and advised this was
considered by the Capital Development Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.
There was no further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2080; Award of
Contract to Martam Construction for the SW Drainage Project. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2081; Authorizing the Execution of Construction Phase Task Order No. 2 with
CH2M for the Project: SW Drainage Project.

Authorizes a task order for construction phase services related to the SW Drainage Project. Task order
not-to-exceed 529,777.61.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2081 and advised this was
considered by the Capital Development Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.
There was no further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2081; Authorizing
the Execution of Construction Phase Task Order No. 2 with CH2M for the Project: SW Drainage Project.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2082; Award of Contract to Biofoam, Inc. for Spray-On Closed Cell insulation
of a Hangar Roof.

Approves a contract to spray coat closed cell polyurethane insulation on the ceiling of Hangar E1 Bays 1
and 2 including the removal of existing insulation. Total authorized construction cost not-to-exceed
543,200.30, which includes a 10% owner’s contingency.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2082 and advised this was
considered by the Capital Development Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.
There was no further discussion.



A MOTION was made by Commissioner Chavez to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2082; Award of
contract to Biofoam, Inc. for Spray-On Closed Cell insulation of a Hangar Roof. The motion was seconded
by Commissioner Sharp and was passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2083; Award of Contract to DCG Roofing Solutions, Inc. for a Membrane Roof
Replacement Project.

Approves a contract to replace the PVC membrane roof at the N. Hightail Hangar Bay 1 Office, the project
also includes perimeter coping cap and window sill flashing. Total authorized construction cost not-to-
exceed 523,964.60, which includes a 10% owner’s contingency.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2083 and advised this was
considered by the Capital Development Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.
There was no further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharp to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2083; Award of
Contract to DCG Roofing Solutions, Inc. for a Membrane Roof Replacement Project. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Donnelly and was passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2084; Award of Contract to Gate Options for the Replacement of Three (3)

Electric Gate Operators.

Approves a contract to replace three (3) Hy-Security model electric gate operators. Total authorized
construction cost not-to-exceed $50,589, which includes a 10% owner’s contingency.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2084 and advised this was
considered by the Capital Development Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.
There was no further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2084; Award of
Contract to Gate Options for the Replacement of Three (3) Electric Gate Operators. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Sharp and - was passed by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2086; Ratifying the Execution by the Executive Director of GSA Lease No. GS-
05P-LIL19312 with the Government of the United States of America.

Ratifies the action of the Executive Director for the execution of a lease with the Government of the United
State of America to continue leasing hangar and office space for a 10-year term, 5-years firm. Total lease
payments over the firm term will be $364,930.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2086 and advised this was
considered by the Capital Development Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.
There was no further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharpe to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2086; Ratifying the
Execution by the Executive Director of GSA Lease No. GS-05P-LIL19312 with the Government of the
United States of America. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Ledonne and was passed
unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2087; Authorizing the Execution of a Utility Easement with Commonwealth

Edison.
Authorizes the execution of an electric utility easement adjacent to Powis Road in the Northeast Quadrant

of Airport property.



Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2087 and advised this was
considered by the Capital Development Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.
There was no further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2087; Authorizing
the Execution of a Utility Easement with Commonwealth Edison. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Sharp and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2088; Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with
the lllinois Department of Transportation.

Authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Illinois Department of
Transportation for the sale of two vacant parcels of land adjacent to the Rt. 64, Powis Road intersection
totaling 1.771 acres for the sum of $396,605.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2088 and advised this was
considered by the Capital Development Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.
There was no further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharpe to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2088; Authorizing
the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the lllinois Department of Transportation. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Chavez and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2089; Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with
the County of DuPage.

Authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the County to grant a temporary
construction easement over two parcels of Authority land for the County’s completion of the road
widening and storm sewer project at lllinois Route 64 and Powis Road.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2089 and advised this was
considered by the Capital Development Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.
There was no further discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2089; Authorizing
the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the County of DuPage. The motion was seconded
by Commissioner Sharp and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

A MOTION was made by Commissioner LaMantia to recess to Executive Session for the discussion of
pending, probable or imminent litigation; employee matters; the purchase or lease of real property for
the use of the DuPage Airport Authority; the discussion and semiannual review of lawfully closed
executive session minutes and discussion of destruction of certain verbatim recordings of closed sessions.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).
The Regular Meeting was recessed to Executive Session at 4:14 p. m. and was reconvened at 5:01 p.m.;
upon roll call, a quorum was present. Commissioner LaMantia was not present for the remainder of the

Regular Board Meeting.

10



OTHER BUSINESS
Proposed Resolution 2017-2090; Disclosure of Executive Session Minutes.
Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2090; there was no further

discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2090; Disclosure
of Executive Session Minutes. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was passed
unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2091; A Resolution Authorizing the Destruction of Certain Verbatim

Recordings of Closed Sessions.
Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Resolution 2017-2091; there was no further

discussion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2091; A
Resolution Authorizing the Destruction of Certain Verbatim Recordings of Closed Sessions. The motion
was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (7-0).

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharp to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the DuPage Airport
Authority Board of Commissioners. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Chavez and was passed
unanimously by voice vote; the meeting was adjourned at 5:04 p.m.

Stephen L. Davis
Chairman

(ATTEST)

Gina R. LaMantia
Secretary

11



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT, LEASING AND CUSTOMER FEES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 8, 2017

The meeting of the Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee of the DuPage Airport
Authority Board of Commissioners was convened at the Daniel L. Goodwin Flight Center Building, First
Floor Conference Room, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago, lllinois on Wednesday, November 16,
2016. Committee Chairman Wagner was absent from this committee meeting. Commissioner Chavez
served as Acting Chair and called the meeting to order at 2:32 p.m. A quorum was present for this
meeting.

Commissioners Present: Chavez, Ledonne, Sharp.
{Commissioner Huizenga also attended)

Absent: Posch, Wagner.

DAA Staff Present: Executive Director David Bird; Mark Doles, Director of Aviation Facilities and
Properties; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing Golf Club; Dan Barna, Procurement
Manager; Pamela Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others: Phil Luetkehans, Schirott, Luetkehans and Garner; Michael Vonic, CH2M; Michael Toth, JWI.
Press: None

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Resolution 2017-2080; Award of Contract to Martam for the SW Drainage Project.
Approves a contract to construct approximately 2,500’ of 36” storm sewer to convey farm field
underdrainage. Total authorized construction cost not-to-exceed $325,582.13, which includes a 10%
owner’s contingency.

Dan Barna stated that a project has been underway to repair farm tiles after drainage problems were
discovered; these drainage issues were caused by old farm tiles damaged over time. Mr. Barna
explained the scope of work required for completing this project. He continued that CH2M and
Christopher B. Burke developed plans and specifications for this project; a Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting
was held and seven (7) bids were received. He continued that Martam was the low, responsive and
responsible bidder. Discussion continued and staff recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne for Proposed Resolution 2017-2080; Award of Contract
to Martam for the SW Drainage Project. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was
unanimously passed by roll call vote (3-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2081; Authorizing the Execution of Construction Phase Task Order No. 2 with
CH2M for the Project: SW Drainage Project.

Authorizes a task order for construction phase services related to the SW Drainage Project. Task order
not-to-exceed $29,777.61.

Mr. Barna advised that CH2M submitted a Task Order to provide construction phase support and
observation services over a four-week period for the project discussed; SW Drainage project. Discussion
followed. Board approval was recommended.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2081; Authorizing
the Execution of Canstruction Phase Task Order No. 2 with CH2M for the Project: SW Drainage Project.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (3-0).



Proposed Resolution 2017-2082; Award of Contract to Biofoam, Inc. for Spray-On-Closed Cell Insulation
of a Hangar Roof.

Approves a contract to spray coat closed cell polyurethane insulation on the ceiling of Hangar E1 Boys 1
and 2 including the removal of existing insulation. Total authorized construction cost not-to-exceed
§43,200.30, which includes a 10% owner’s contingency.

Mr. Barna explained a roofing project was undertaken last year for various hangars on the airfield. The
roof replacement for Hangar E1 was not a project planned for 2017. He continued that it became
necessary when after the new roof was installed the insulation under the new roof was discovered to be
wet and leaking due to condensation and saturation of the insulation. Mr. Barna continued to explain the
scope of work required for solving this issue and the costs associated. A mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting was
conducted and four bids were received; Biofoam, Inc. was the low, responsive and responsible bidder.
Discussion followed. Board approval was recommended.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2082; Award of
contract to Biofoam, Inc. for Spray-On Closed Cell Insulation of a Hangar Roof. The motion was seconded
by Commissioner Sharp and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (3-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2083; Award of Contract to DCG Roofing Solutions, Inc. for a Membrane Roof
Replacement Project.

Approves a contract to replace the PVC membrane roof at the N. Hightail Hangar Bay 1 office, the project
also includes perimeter coping cap and window sill flashing. Total authorized construction cost not-to-
exceed $23,394.60, which includes a 10% owner’s contingency.

Mr. Barna reported this roof is 16 years old, leaking and in need of replacement. He reviewed the scope
of this project and costs associated. Seven (7) bids were received and DCG Roofing Solutions was the low
bidder. Discussion followed. Board approval was recommended.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2083; Award of
Contract to DCG Roofing Solutions, Inc. for a Membrane Roof Replacement Project. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (3-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2084; Award of Contract to Gate Options for the Replacement of Three (3)
Electric Gate Operators.

Approves a contract to replace three (3) Hy-Security model electric gate operators. Total authorized
construction cost not-to-exceed 550,589, which includes a 10% owner’s contingency.

Mr. Barna advised the Airport Authority budgeted for three (3) electric vehicle gate operators to be
replaced in 2017 due to their age and unreliability. He reviewed the scope of this project and advised four
(4) bids were received. Gate Options was the low, responsive and responsible bidder. He reviewed the
costs associated with this project and stated that Gate Options has done quality work at the Airport many
times in past years. Discussion followed and Board approval was recommended.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2084; Award of
Contract to Gate Options for the Replacement of Three (3) Electric Gate Operators. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (3-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2086; Ratifying the Execution by the Executive Director of GSA Lease No. GS-
05P-LIL19312 with the Government of the United States of America.

Ratifies the action of the Executive Director for the execution of a lease with the Government of the United
States of America to continue leasing hangar and office space for a 10-year term, 5-years firm. Total lease
payments over the firm term will be $364,930.

13



Mark Doles explained this Federal Governmental Agency has been an existing tenant at DuPage for five
years and their current lease expired February 25, 2017. Because of the timing associated with this lease
renewal and the process for GSA approvals, it was necessary for the Executive Director to execute this
lease prior to the March 8 Board Meeting; ratification of this action is requested. Mr. Doles continued to
review the terms of the lease agreement and anticipated revenues for the Airport Authority. Discussion
followed. Board approval was recommended.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2086; Ratifying
the Execution by the Executive Director of GSA Lease No. GS-05P-LIL19312 with the Government of the
United States of America. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously
passed by roll call vote (3-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2087; Authorizing the Execution of a Utility Easement with Commonwealth

Edison.

Authorizes the execution of an electric utility easement adjacent to Powis Road in the Northeast Quadrant
of Airport property.

Dan Barna reported that in the fall of 2016 the Board awarded a project to remove old perimeter fencing
and to install new security fencing and wildlife skirt for 2.1 miles of the airfield. He continued that during
the last phase of this project the contractor encountered a power line located directly under the old fence
and short of the easement. Mr. Barna added that because of the danger involved, this project could not
move forward. There were no existing records found reflecting the location of this line under the Airport
fence. Attorney Luetkehans has been working with Commonwealth Edison to develop an easement
agreement to allow Commonwealth Edison to install a new power line east of the existing line. Attorney
Luetkehans explained Commonwealth Edison has agreed to pay the Airport Authority the additional fees
incurred in conjunction with this easement agreement. Discussion followed. Board approval was

recommended.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharp to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2087; Authorizing
the Execution of a Utility Easement with Commonwealth Edison. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Ledonne and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (3-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2088; Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with
the lllinois Department of Transportation.

Authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the lllinois Department of
Transportation for the sale of two vacant parcels of land adjacent to the Rt. 64/Powis Road Intersection
totaling 1.771 acres for the sum of 5396,605.

Attorney Luetkehans advised that the Airport Authority negotiated and sold certain parcels of land
adjacent to Route 38 (Roosevelt Road) to the lllinois Department of Transportation for the overpass
construction project. He continued that at the same time the Airport Authority and the lllinois
Department of Transportation (IDOT) negotiated for the sale of certain parcels of land adjacent to Route
64 (North Avenue) and Powis Road for the road widening project at Route 64. Attorney Luetkehans
advised that this Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) has been drafted to reflect the land sale at Route 64
and Powis Road and reviewed the terms of the IGA. Discussion followed and Board approval was

recommended.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2088; Authorizing
the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Illinois Department of Transportation. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (3-0).

14



Proposed Resolution 2017-2089; Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with
the County of DuPage.

Authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the County to grant a temporary
construction easement over two parcels of Authority land for the County’s completion of the road
widening and storm sewer project at lllinois Route 64 and Powis Road.

Attorney Luetkehans stated that DuPage County has taken on the completion of the road widening
project at lllinois Route 64 and Powis Road. He continued that part of this completion is the construction
of the storm water sewer project on DAA property. Attorneys for the County and DAA have drafted this
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) which grants a temporary construction easement over two Airport
Authority land parcels adjacent to Route 64. Attorney Luetkehans explained the terms of the IGA with
DuPage County. Board approval was recommended.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2089; Authorizing
the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the County of DuPage. The motion was seconded
by Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (3-0).

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
There was no Executive Session.

OTHER BUSINESS
None

Commissioner Ledonne made a MOTION to adjourn the Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees
Committee Meeting; the motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was passed by unanimous
voice vote. The committee meeting was adjourned at 3:00 p.m.

Daniel J. Wagner, Chairman
Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee

15



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT, LEASING AND CUSTOMER FEES
SPECIAL COMMITTEE MEETING
THURSDAY, MARCH 30, 2017

A special meeting of the Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee of the DuPage
Airport Authority Board of Commissioners was convened at the Daniel L. Goodwin Flight Center Building,
First Floor Conference Room, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago, illinois on Thursday, March 30,
2017. Committee Chairman Wagner called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. A quorum was present for

this meeting.

Commiissioners Present: Chavez, Ledonne, Davis, Wagner.
Absent: Posch, Sharp

DAA Staff Present: David Bird, Executive Director; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing
Golf Club; Pamela Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others: Phil Luetkehans, Schirott, Luetkehans and Garner; Ed Harrington, CenterPoint Properties Trust.

Press: None

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion of Concepts and Alternatives for Development of the DuPage Business Center.

Chairman Wagner asked Executive Director Bird to update the committee regarding the Eola Road
Extension. Executive Director Bird stated that he had learned there is now positive movement for the
extension; discussion followed. DuPage County Chairman Cronin has established DuPage Connects for
the development of a Long-Range Transportation Plan. Executive Director Bird was invited to participate
on this Advisory Steering Committee for DuPage Connects and at the first meeting stated that the Eola
Road extension is a priority for the Airport Authority; access is one of the constraints for attracting
development to the DuPage Business Center. Discussion followed.

Committee Chairman Wagner invited Ed Harrington of CenterPoint Properties Trust to begin his
presentation. Executive Director Bird commented prior to Mr. Harrington’s presentation that
CenterPoint has the most experience with the Business Center dating back to 2001. He added that much
has happened during these years and it is valuable for the Committee to know CenterPoint’s view of the
strengths and weaknesses of the Business Center.

Mr. Harrington acknowledged that CenterPoint has had a long history at the Business Center and his
involvement has been mostly over the last two years. He continued that changes since the recession have
had a big and lasting effect on the industry and the market is now starting to catch up. Mr. Harrington
related how CenterPoint has evolved and grown into a national company but has not abandoned their
Chicago roots. CenterPaint has properties on the East Coast, West Coast and the Midwest; CenterPoint
has a presence in approximately 20 states. Mr. Harrington discussed the current development agreement
as it was rewritten in 2013 and shared his ideas for structuring the future agreement. Discussion occurred
regarding the following topics:

e Spec Development and the risks involved.

e The importance of incentives with both the City of West Chicago and the Airport Authority.
Working with the local taxing districts for incentives.

16



e  More aggressive pricing and marketing strategies.
Possibly offering incentives to CenterPoint in the way of pricing cuts or profit sharing.

e The need for streamlining the approval process with the City of West Chicago and the Airport
Authority for proposed development. Recommended standards be relaxed somewhat regarding
zoning and landscaping in order make the process less complicated and prohibitive for interested

companies.

Mr. Harrington closed by saying that CenterPoint is a partner with no other conflicting business interests
in this area; the Business Center is CenterPoint’s primary focus for Western DuPage. He continued that
CenterPoint is credible in the industry and a strong financial partner. Mr. Harrington stated that
CenterPoint is invested at the Business Center and if CenterPoint is allowed to continue as developer,
working on a day-to-day basis, it will be beneficial for the future of the Park. He expressed thanks for the
opportunity to address the Committee. Mr. Harrington left the meeting at this point.

The Committee continued discussion regarding the Request for Proposal (RFP) process and Executive
Director Bird advised that RFP drafts will be distributed to the Committee for review prior to the next
Special Committee Meeting. The next Special Committee Meeting will be planned for late April.
Discussion continued.

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
There was no Executive Session held.

OTHER BUSINESS
None

Commissioner Ledonne made a MOTION to adjourn the Special Meeting of the Capital Development,
Leasing and Customer Fees Committee; the motion was seconded by Commissioner Chavez and was
passed by unanimous voice vote. The committee meeting was adjourned at 9:14 a.m.

Daniel J. Wagner, Committee Chairman
Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee

17



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT, LEASING AND CUSTOMER FEES
SPECIAL COMMITTEE MEETING
THURSDAY, APRIL 20, 2017

A special meeting of the Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee of the DuPage
Airport Authority Board of Commissioners was convened at the Daniel L. Goodwin Flight Center Building,
First Floor Conference Room, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago, lllinois on Thursday, April 20, 2017.
Committee Chairman Wagner called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. A quorum was present for this
meeting.

Commissioners Present: Chavez, Davis, Ledonne, Posch, Sharp, Wagner.
Absent: None

DAA Staff Present: David Bird, Executive Director; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing
Golf Club; Mark Doles, Director of Aviation Facilities and Properties; Pamela Miller, Executive Assistant

and Board Liaison.

Others: Phil Luetkehans, Schirott, Luetkehans and Garner.
Press: None

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharp to recess to Executive Session for the discussion of pending,
probable or imminent litigation; the purchase or lease of real property for the use of the DuPage Airport
Authority; and the setting of a price for sale or lease of property owned by the DuPage Airport Authority.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Ledonne and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (6-0).
The Special Committee Meeting was recessed to Executive Session at 8:01 a.m. and was reconvened at
8:43 a.m.; upon roll call, a quorum was present. Board Chairman Davis was not present for the remainder

of the Special Committee Meeting.

NEW BUSINESS
Discussion of Concepts and Alternatives for Development of the DuPage Business Center.
Executive Director Bird reviewed two drafts provided for the Committee’s consideration:

e Request for Proposal (RFP) for Real Estate Brokerage Services
e Request for Proposal (RFP) for Sale of Property

Discussion followed and Executive Director Bird advised once finalized the RFP’s will be published and a
selection committee will be established; Committee Chairman Wagner has asked to participate in the
selection process.

Commissioner Ledonne complimented staff once again for the excellent progress made at the Airport and
stated taxpayers can be very proud. He continued that, as a citizen of DuPage County it is good to see a
unit of government working well together to accomplish good things; committee members agreed.

18



OTHER BUSINESS
None

Commissioner Ledonne made a MOTION to adjourn the Special Meeting of the Capital Development,
Leasing and Customer Fees Committee; the motion was seconded by Commissioner Chavez and was
passed unanimously by roll call vote (5-0). The committee meeting was adjourned at 9:14 a.m.

Daniel J. Wagner, Committee Chairman
Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee

19



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 8, 2017

A meeting of the Finance, Budget and Audit Committee of the DuPage Airport Authority Board of
Commissioners was convened at the Daniel L. Goodwin Flight Center Building, First Floor Conference
Room, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago, lllinois on Wednesday, March 8, 2017. Committee
Chairman Huizenga called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. A quorum was present for the committee

meeting.

Commissioners Present: Donnelly, Huizenga, Ledonne, Sharp,
Commissioners Absent: Posch, Wagner

DuPage Airport Authority Staff Present:

Executive Director David Bird; Mark Doles, Director of Aviation Facilities and Properties; Patrick Hoard,
Director of Finance and Prairie Landing Golf Club; Dan Barna, Procurement Manager; Pamela Miller,
Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others: None

OLD BUSINESS
None

NEW BUSINESS
REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Patrick Hoard reviewed the February 2017 Financial Statements and discussion followed:

Operating Revenues:

Airport Operations revenues are up 2% actual versus budget.

Flight Center Fuel Operations revenues decreased 8% due to volumes not being where they were
expected when budgeted. Good winter weather has slowed the use and sale of deicing materials.
During inclement weather conditions, there are normally many diverted operations from
Midway Airport to DuPage; this year that did not happen.

Prairie Landing Golf Club increased 10% from the budgeted amount with increased memberships.
Total Operating Revenues are down 5%,; actual versus budget.

Operating Expenses:

Airport Operations are down 12%.

Flight Center Operations are roughly flat from what was expected; down 3%.

Prairie Landing Golf Club down 16% with all managers doing a good job of managing and maintaining
expense.

Total Operating Expenses decreased 8% actual versus budget.

Net Profit from Operations:
Showing a profit from the amount budgeted; $43,389 actual year to date.

Total Non-Operating Revenues/ Total Non-Operating Expenses:

In comparison, there is a large percentage change with these two lines, however, the dollar amounts are
small. PNC has been instructed to liquidate the Airport Authority’s investments. These funds were
transferred to MB Financial to be utilized for the new transient hangar and the land acquisitions.

Cash Ending Balance Ending: Actual Year-to-Date Ending Cash Balance through Year to Date is
$17,643.868.




NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Resolution 2017-2076; Resolution Authorizing the Borrowing of Funds for the DuPage Airport
Authority and the Execution of a Loan Agreement with MB Financial Bank, N.A.

Authorizes the execution of a Loan Agreement with MB Financial Bank, N.A. which will allow the DuPage
Airport Authority to borrow short term funds in the event they are needed to achieve the Authorities 2017
Capital Improvement Program.

Patrick Hoard stated that the 2017 Capital and Major Maintenance Plan totals $15.6 million which
includes the land acquisitions; currently there is $17 million in cash available. Mr. Hoard continued that it
is possible the appropriated cash budget may get low with these impending expenditures. Mr. Hoard
explained that this agreement with MB Financial to have a $3 million line of credit will serve as a backup
however it is not expected to be needed. The terms of the agreement were reviewed and discussion
occurred. Board approval was recommended.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2076; Authorizing
the Borrowing of Funds for the DuPage Airport Authority and the Execution of a Loan Agreement with MB
Financial Bank, N.A. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was unanimously passed by
roll call vote (4-0).

Proposed Resolution 2017-2079; Award of a Tree Maintenance Services Contract to Clean Cut Tree
Services, Inc.

Approves a one (1) year Tree Maintenance Services Contract, subject to two (2) one (1) year extensions at
the sole discretion of the Authority. Annual cost of 510,617 (year 1), $10,829.34 (year 2), and $11,045.93

(vear 3).
Dan Barna explained that approximately 280 trees on the International Drive Campus are maintained each

year by a contracted tree maintenance company and applications are conducted at specified times
throughout the year. Mr. Barna advised that two bids were received for this contract and Clean Cut Tree
Services, Inc. was the low, responsive and responsible bidder. The Airport Authority has worked with
Clean Cut Tree Services in prior years and has provided quality services. Board approval was
recommended. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2017-2079; Award of a
Tree Maintenance Services Contract to Clean Cut Tree Services, Inc. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Donnelly and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (4-0).

Commissioner Ledonne complimented Dan Barna on a good job conducting the bid process and saving
taxpayer dollars. All committee members agreed. Discussion continued briefly.

OTHER BUSINESS
None

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to adjourn the Finance, Budget and Audit Committee;
the motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was passed unanimously by voice vate. The
meeting adjourned at 2:25 p.m.

Peter H. Huizenga, Chairman
Finance, Budget and Audit Committee

21



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
GOLF COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, March 8, 2017

The Golf Committee of the DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners
was convened at the Daniel L. Goodwin Flight Center Building, First Floor
Conference Room, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago, Illinois on
Wednesday, March 8, 2017. Chairman Donnelly called the meeting to order at
1:30 p.m. and a quorum was present for the meeting.

Commissioners Present: Donnelly, Huizenga, Ledonne
Commissioners Absent: None

DuPage Airport Authority Staff Present: Executive Director David Bird;
Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing Golf Club; Dan Barna,
Operations and Capital Programs Manager; Becky Taylor, Accountant for Prairie
Landing Golf Club; Pamela Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others in Attendance:
NONE

NEW BUSINESS
a. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
Patrick Hoard reviewed the following topics as part of the Director’s Report:

Staffing: Management staff remains the same as the past two years:

JR. Starnes is Golf Operations Manager; Eric Mundt is Golf Course
Grounds Superintendent and has worked at the golf course for 10
years; Erin Bobsin is Food and Beverage Manager and has been with
Prairie Landing for six years. Bryant Gaines is a hew employee for
Prairie Landing and will assist with marketing, bringing contacts from
his previous job at Indian Lakes that was recently closed. The driving
range opened on February 17 and the golf course opened for play on
March 4.

Golf Operations: Memberships forecast 5% up in total from 186;
Membership Revenue forecasted to be up almost 20% 5% increase
in rounds. The goal is 2800 rounds for 2017. Revenues up 9% year
over year.

Food & Beverage: Budgeted for 17 weddings in 2017 and 16
weddings have been booked for 2017 at this point. Likely to meet or

22



exceed the budget. Lots of inquiries for weddings for 2018;
momentum is building

Marketing:

On the wedding side, Prairie Landing utilizes a publication called 7he
Knott as well as Chicago Style. Many inquiries on the Prairie Landing
Facebook page for advertising. For this year, Erin Bobsin and Ashley
Greenlund attended a Bride Show in Rosemont and have booked
weddings from their attendance. There will be a similar event held in
Naperville and they will attend. This seems to be good way to pursue
leads for potential wedding bookings. There have been 1800 /ikes
from people visiting the Prairie Landing website. Prairie Landing is
currently the highest rated golf course in DuPage County on Trip
advisor.

The use of Deal Caddy has been successful; 700-1000 people have
bought in 2016.

Becky Taylor is now updating the Prairie Landing website and
Newsletter with more to come for the Facebook page and website.

Executive Director Bird advised there is a very cohesive team in place
now at Prairie Landing which is bringing about the progress Patrick has
reported. Discussion followed.

Capital Program:

At the May Board Meeting, there will be a project coming to this
committee for replacement of the cedar trim around the clubhouse.
Discussion continued briefly.

b. Proposed Resolution 2017-2077; Award of Bid to Burris

Equipment Company for the Procurement of Two (2) Golf Course
Greens Rollers.

Approves the procurement of two (2) Smithco XL 70 units for a total cost
of $29,353 F.O.B. Prairie Landing Golf Club.

Dan Barna stated that Prairie Landing does not currently own units
dedicated to greens rolling and staff feels this will improve play for
customers and the health of the greens.

Mr. Barna reported that four (4) bids were received however the lowest
bid did not meet the required specifications. Discussion followed
regarding this deviation from the specifications. Burris Equipment
Company was determined to the lowest, responsive and responsible

23



bidder and is $3600 under the amount budgeted for this purchase. Staff
recommended approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed
Resolution 2017-2077; Award of Bid to Burris Equipment Company for the
Procurement of Two (2) Smithco XL 70 units for a total cost of $29,353
F.O.B. Prairie Landing Golf Club. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Huizenga and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (3-

0).

c. Proposed Resolution 2017-2078; Award of Bid to J.W. Turf, Inc.
for the Procurement of One (1) Golf course Turf Aerator.
Approves the procurement of one (1) John Deere Aerco 1500 for a total
cost of $1,995.27 F.O.B. Prairie Landing Golf Club.

Mr. Barna advised the Airport Authority budgeted for the procurement of
one (1) golf course turf aerator. The golf course currently has two walk
behind units and this new unit will be mounted on the back of a tractor.
Mr. Barna advised that three (3) bids were received and the lowest bidder
did not meet the required specifications. Discussion followed regarding
this deviation from the specifications. J.W. Turf was determined to be the
low, responsive, responsible bidder at $8,000 under the amount budgeted
for procurement of this unit.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed
Resolution 2017-2078; Award of Bid to J.W. Turf, Inc. for the Procurement
of One (1) Golf Course Turf Aerator. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Huizenga and was unanimously passed by roll call vote (3-
0).

Discussion followed briefly and a MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne
to adjourn the meeting of the Golf Committee and Commissioner Huizenga
seconded this motion. The motion was unanimously passed by voice vote and
was adjourned at 1:55 p.m.

Charles E. Donnelly
Committee Chairman



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
INTERNAL POLICY AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Wednesday, April 26, 2017
DuPage Airport Authority
Daniel L. Goodwin Flight Center Building
2700 International Drive
West Chicago, Illinois 60185

The Special Meeting of the Internal Policy and Compliance Committee of the DuPage Airport
Authority Board of Commissioners convened at the Daniel L. Goodwin Flight Center Building,
2700 International Drive, West Chicago, Illinois on Wednesday, April 26, 2017. Committee
Chairwoman LaMantia called the meeting to order at 8:06 a.m. and a quorum was present for
the meeting.

Commissioners Present: Chavez, LaMantia, Ledonne, Posch

Absent: None

DAA Staff Present: Executive Director David Bird; Mark Doles, Director of Aviation Facilities
and Properties; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing Golf Club; Dan Barna,
Operations and Capital Program Manager; Pamela Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.
Others in Attendance: Phil Luetkehans, Schirott, Luetkehans & Garner, LLC.

Members of the Press: None

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Ordinance 2017-311; Amending the DuPage Airport Authority Procurement
Policy.

Provides exceptions to allow certain types of contracts to be extended by the Board of
Commissfoners for an additional period.

Committee Chairwoman LaMantia reminded the committee that at the January Policy Committee
Meeting this amendment was discussed and legal staff was directed to conduct further analysis
and report back to this committee. She continued that it was suggested that anything over the
5-year term would be reviewed on a case-by-case basis. Dan Barna explained the current
Procurement Policy has a cap on contract terms; not to exceed four (4) years in duration and
requiring the Board to waive the requirement of the Code when approving a longer contract
term. Mr. Barna stated that with certain unique types of contracts it may not be in the best
interest of the Airport Authority to have shorter terms due to changes in services, equipment and
software. He continued there are significant costs and operational burdens involved with
changing certain types of contracts, particularly those that involve any type of software or IT
services such as timekeeping and payroll, accounting systems, and point-of-sale systems. Staff is
asking for the flexibility to extend the initial term up to five (5) years if there is a unique contract
situation; this request would be brought for approval. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Ordinance 2017-311; Amending the DuPage Airport Authority Procurement Policy. The motion
was seconded by Commissioner Chavez and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (4-0).

25



Proposed Ordinance 2017-312; Amending the DuPage Airport Authority Employee
Handbook.

Incorporates criminal history records check procedures for employees who require unescorted
access to the airport Operations Area.

Dan Barna stated the Airport Authority has made significant security improvements since
September 11, 2001. He reviewed the Photo ID Access Control Badging Program for employees,
tenants and contractors who require unescorted access to restricted areas of the Airport,
primarily Airport Operations Areas (AOA). He continued that all employees who require
unescorted access to Airport Operations Areas also undergo fingerprinting and criminal history
checks and these results are reviewed by the Executive Director. This badging program is
consistent with Transportation Security Administration (TSA) Guidelines for General Aviation
Airports and this is currently addressed in the Employee Handbook. Mr. Barna advised this
amendment will formalize and enhance the existing procedures consistent with airport security
standards and in compliance with Federal/State laws and Employer Best Practices. The Airport
Authority legal counsel, Schirott Luetkehans & Garner; and Sheppard Mullin, the Airport
Authority’s personnel counsel, have reviewed the proposed amendments for the Employee
Handbook. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Ordinance 2017-312; Amending the DuPage Airport Authority Employee Handbook. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Posch and was passed unanimously by roll call vote

(4-0).

OTHER BUSINESS
None

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Chavez to adjourn the Internal Policy and Compliance
Committee Meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Posch and was passed
unanimously by voice vote. The meeting adjourned at 8:46 a.m.

Gina LaMantia, Chair
Internal Policy and Compliance Committee

26



——_
DUPAGE AIRPORT

AUTHORITY

MONTHLY STATISTICS
April 2017

Apr.

Percent YTD YTD Percent

Apr.'17  Apr.'16 '17vs.'16 Change 2017 2016 '17 vs. '16 Change

FUEL
100LL 16,740 18,360 (1,620) -8.8% 57,952 60,916 (2,964) -4.9%
Jet A 195,280 179,245 16,035 8.9% 749,869 715,177 34,692 4.9%
Total Gallons 212,020 197,605 14,415 7.3% 807,821 776,093 31,728 41%



DUPAGE AIRPORT

AUTHORITY
MONTHLY STATISTICS
March 2017
Mar.
Percent YTD YTD Percent
Mar.'177 Mar. '16 17 vs.'16 Change 2017 2016 17 vs.'16 Change
FUEL
100LL 15,385 16,066 (681) -4.2% 41,212 42,556 (1,344) -3.2%
Jet A 192,590 189,155 3,435 1.8% 554,589 535,932 18,657 3.5%
Total Gallons 207,975 205,221 2,754 1.3% 595,801 578,488 17,313 3.0%
OPERATIONS
Local 2,940 4,252 (1,312) -30.9% 8,151 10,125 (1,974) -19.5%
Itinerant 3,011 3,649 (638) -17.5% 8,577 9,991 (1,414) -14.2%
Total Ops 5,951 7,901 (1,950) -24.7% 16,728 20,116 (3,388) -16.8%
REGIONAL OPS
Mar.

Percent YTD YTD Percent
Total OPS Mar.'17 Mar.'16 '17 vs.'16 Change 2017 2016 '"17vs.'16 Change
DuPAGE 5,951 7,901 (1,950) -24.7% 16,728 20,116 (3,388) -16.8%
Palwaukee 5,266 5,833 (567) -9.7% 14,417 16,507 (2,090) -12.7%
Aurora 3,506 4,279 (773) -18.1% 10,112 12,110 (1,998) -16.5%
Waukegan 2,489 3,248 (759) -23.4% 7,523 8,922 (1,399) -15.7%
State of lllinois 149,501 153,373 (3,872) -2.5% 411,264 426,242 (14,978) -3.5%
Teterboro 14,105 13,953 152 1.1% 40,093 38,234 1,859 4.9%
Van Nuys 18,840 16,808 2,032 12.1% 49,741 48,907 834 1.7%
Centennial 25,790 25,113 677 2.7% 67,064 72,928 (5,864) -8.0%
Local OPS
DuPAGE 2,940 4,252 (1,312) -30.9% 8,151 10,125 (1,974) -19.5%
Palwaukee 1,651 1,686 (35) -2.1% 3,975 4,718 (743) -15.7%
Aurora 1,858 2,069 (211) -10.2% 5,486 6,196 (710) -11.5%
Waukegan 636 1,407 (771) -54.8% 2,092 3,824 (1,732) -45.3%
State of lllinois 27,467 27,428 39 0.1% 73,826 76,637 (2,811) -3.7%
Teterboro 0 0 0 0 0 0
Van Nuys 5,895 5,195 700 13.5% 15,522 13,855 1,667 12.0%
Centennial 12,461 11,827 634 5.4% 31,263 33,060 (1,797) -5.4%
Itinerant OPS
DuPAGE 3,011 3,649 (638) -17.5% 8,577 9,991 (1,414) -14.2%
Palwaukee 3,615 4,147 (532) -12.8% 10,442 11,789 (1,347) -11.4%
Aurora 1,648 2,210 (562) -25.4% 4,626 5,914 (1,288) -21.8%
Waukegan 1,853 1,841 12 0.7% 5,431 5,098 333 6.5%
State of Hlinois 122,034 125,945 (3,911) -3.1% 337,438 349,605 (12,167) -3.5%
Teterboro 14,105 13,953 152 1.1% 40,093 38,234 1,859 4.9%
Van Nuys 12,945 11,613 1,332 11.5% 34,219 35,052 (833) -2.4%
Centennial 13,329 13,286 43 0.3% 35,801 39,868 (4,067) -10.2%

28



Jet A by Month

=g 2017

—®— 4-Year Average

220,000
215,000

210,000 A
205,000 A / \
E 2oo:ooo // \\ /./ \\

& 195,000 /ﬁ(‘ 7 \ / \

oo R A N S—
: &V// \l

180,000
175,000
170,000 - — —

100LL by Month

~—@— 4-Year Average

25,000 | = — _/“\\
\

9,000 =
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 12
=g 2017
Total Gallons by Month ®
~—4#— 4-Yoar Average
240,000

- ANEEIVA
/ "\

o il N
200,000 /4 w

190,000 — _—

Total Gallons

180,000 s =

29



4,500

4,000 |

3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

Local OPS

6,000 -

5,000

4,000

2,000

Transient OPS

1,000

10,000
9,000
8,000
7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000

Total OPS

Local OPS by Month

e 2017

—— 4-Year Average

N
= _—

—

ke

%

g 2017

—@— 4-Year Average

3,000 -

Total OPS by Month ===

——8— 4-Year Average

30



g

DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

4/30/2017

FINANCIALS
PRE-AUDIT
COMMISSIONERS



Board Summary
DuPage Airport Authority
YTD April 2017

YTD YTD Percent Change
Budget Actual Actual vs Budget
Beginning Cash Balance- Unrestricted 12,210,895 12,210,895
Beginning Cash Balance - Restricted 7,912,119 7,912,119
20,123,014 20,123,014
OPERATING REVENUES
Airport Operations 1,358,744 1,362,051 0%
Flight Center Fuel Operations 3,268,556 3,153,779 -4%
Prairie Landing Golf Club 382,102 389,970 2%
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 5,009,402 4,905,800 -2%
OPERATING EXPENSES
Airport Operations 2,208,185 2,019,424 -9%
Flight Center Fuel Operations 2,234,646 2,203,793 -1%
Prairie Landing Golf Club 489,303 417,226 -15%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,932,134 4,640,442 -6%
Net Profit (Loss) from Operations 77,268 265,358 243%
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Miscellaneous Taxes 25,200 15,167 -40%
Property Taxes/Abatements 500 1,295 159%
Federal & State Grants 0 40,176 0%
Investment Income 8,332 6,816 -18%
Unrealized Gain {Loss) from Investments 0 (36) 0%
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets 10,000 25,616 156%
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES 44,032 89,035 102%
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Property Tax (DAA) 71,000 70,000 -1%
Property Tax (PLGC) 83,332 83,332 0%
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 154,332 153,332 -1%
Net Profit (Loss) from Non-Operations (110,300) (64,297) 42%
Net Profit (Loss) Excluding Depreciation (33,032) 201,061 709%
Total YTD Revenues 5,053,434 4,994,835 -1%
Total YTD Expenditures 5,086,466 4,793,774 -6%
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS 12,510,850 4,644,219 -63%
MAJOR MAINTENANCE 42,540 17,514 -59%
FUTURE PROJECT EXPENSE 0 0 0%
TRANSFERS IN (OUT) 0 0 0%
Adjustment for Non-Cash Activities 0 (2,080,605)
|Cash Balance - Ending 7,536,592 13,581,737 80%|

32



DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Month of April 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Receivables
Property Taxes
Accounts Receivable
Notes Receivable TEA Current Portion
Notes Receivable TEA Long term Portion
Due To/From Prairie Landing Golf Club

Due To/From DuPage Bus. Park Owner Assoc.

Prepaid Expenses
Vehicle Fuel Inventory
Inventories
Total Current Assets

Other Assets
Pension Items - IMRF
Total Other Assets

Capital Assets
Cost
Construction in Progress

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization
Total Capital Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

AIRPORT DuPAGE FLIGHT PRAIRIE LANDING

OPERATIONS CENTER GOLF CLUB TOTALS
1,021,180 12,222,075 338,481 13,581,737
6,021,666 - - 6,021,666
114,835 375,488 28,335 518,658
47,400 - - 47,400
25,032 = - 25,032
1,262,307 - - 1,262,307
30,000 - = 30,000
466,033 45,444 6,950 518,427
18,643 - - 18,643
- 160,370 93,280 253,650
9,007,097 12,803,377 467,046 22,277,521
899,220 375,235 384,396 1,658,850
899,220 375,235 384,396 1,658,850
326,025,848 880,465 2,416,616 329,322,929
14,755,833 = = 14,755,833
340,781,680 880,465 2,416,616 344,078,762
(183,820,901) (762,688) (2,364,489) (186,948,078)
156,960,779 117,777 52,127 157,130,683
166,867,096 13,296,389 903,569 181,067,054

33



DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Month of April 2017

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to/from DuPage Airport Authority
Deferred Income - Operations
Deferred Income Property Taxes
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Security Deposits
Net Pension Liability
Total Long-Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Net Assets
Investment in Capital Assets, January 1
Changes in Net Capital Assets
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted for Future Capital Assets, January 1
Changes in Restricted for Future Capital Assets

Net Restricted for Future Capital Assets

Designated for Future Capital Assets, lanuary 1

Changes in Designated for Future Capital Assets

Net Designated for Future Capital Assets

Unrestricted Assets, January 1
Changes in Unrestricted Assets
Net Income (Loss)
Intrafund Transfers - Transfer from Tech Park
Net Unrestricted Assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

AIRPORT DuPAGE FLIGHT PRAIRIE LANDING

OPERATIONS CENTER GOLF CLUB TOTALS
885,271 166,044 35,980 1,087,296
670,708 105,241 523,691 1,299,640
- = 1,262,307 1,262,307
1,663,036 107,622 - 1,770,658
6,021,665 ~ = 6,021,665
9,240,680 378,908 1,821,978 11,441,566
90,434 - 172,513 262,947
786,574 328,229 336,242 1,451,045
877,008 328,229 508,755 1,713,992
10,117,688 707,136 2,330,734 13,155,558
154,521,836 122,841 62,799 154,707,477
2,438,943 (5,064) (10,672) 2,423,207
156,960,779 117,777 52,127 157,130,683
7,912,119 - = 7,912,119
(5,794,108) - - (5,794,108)
2,118,011 - - 2,118,011
(2,833,788) 11,521,489 (1,358,336) 7,329,366
3,355,165 5,064 10,672 3,370,901
(2,850,759) 944,922 (131,628) (2,037,465)
{2,329,382) 12,471,476 (1,479,292) 8,662,802
156,749,408 12,589,253 (1,427,165) 167,911,496
166,867,096 13,296,389 903,569 181,067,054

34



DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

YTD April 2017

AIRPORT DuPAGE FLIGHT PRAIRIE LANDING
OPERATIONS CENTER GOLF CLUB TOTALS
Revenues
Field Operations 378,936 0 0 378,936
Building Operations 814,166 0 0 814,166
Flight Center Building 75,879 0 0 75,879
Administrative 93,070 0 0 93,070
Fuel and Qil Sales 0 3,057,651 0 3,057,651
De-ice, Lav Service, Preheats, APU, Tows 0 15,924 0 15,924
Overnight Fees - Transient 0 5,034 0 5,034
Hangar Rental 0 67,470 0 67,470
Golf Operations 0 0 276,473 276,473
Food and Beverage 0 4,813 19,658 24,470
Kitty Hawk Deli 0 0 9,195 9,195
Banquet 0 0 83,613 83,613
Miscellaneous 0 2,888 1,032 3,920
Total Revenues 1,362,051 3,153,779 389,970 4,905,300
Operating Expenses
Field Operations 500,576 0 0 500,576
Building Operations 338,488 0 0 338,488
Flight Center Building 81,043 0 0 81,043
Shop Equipment 151,686 0 0 151,686
Projects & Procurement 105,545 0 0 105,545
Fuel and Oil 0 1,566,334 0 1,566,334
Maintenance 0 75,136 0 75,136
Credit Card Expense 0 38,731 5,410 44,141
Golf Course Maintenance 0 0 109,145 109,145
Golf Operations 0 0 66,572 66,572
Food and Beverage 0 21,695 46,266 67,961
Kitty Hawk - Deli 0 0 9,195 9,195
Banquet 0 0 64,302 64,302
Total Operating Expenses 1,177,338 1,701,896 300,889 3,180,122
Gross Profit (Loss) 184,714 1,451,883 89,081 1,725,678
General and Administrative
Administration 696,572 493,496 116,337 1,306,404
Commissioners 35,367 0 0 35,367
Business Development & Marketing 20,760 8,401 0 29,160
Accounting 89,389 0 0 89,389
Total General & Administrative 842,087 501,897 116,337 1,460,320
Operating Income (Loss) Before Depreciation (657,373) 949,986 (27,256) 265,358
& Principal Reductions
Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses)
Taxes - Property 1,295 0 0 1,295
Taxes - Other 15,167 0 0 15,167
Taxes - Paid (70,000) 0 (83,332) (153,332)
Federal & State Grants 40,176 0 0 40,176
Investment Income 6,816 0 0 6,816
Unrealized Gain (Loss) from Investments (36) 0 0 (36)
Amortization (Expense) 0 0 0 0
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets 25,616 0 0 25,616
Other Revenue (Expenses) 0 0 [¢] 0
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 19,035 0 (83,332) (64,297)
Net Income (Loss) before Adjustments (638,338) 949,986 (110,587) 201,061
Depreciation 2,205,276 5,064 10,672 2,221,012
Major Maintenance Expense 7,145 0 10,369 17,514
Future Project Expense 0 0 0 0
Transfers {In) Out 0 0 0 0
INet Income (2,850,759) 944,922 (131,628) (2,037,465)

35



36

w ﬂl
(eep’s9z’T) § $ SEG'LTT 5 (Sp0'Z5S) S (tirveh) §| [lotsov) s Lz8'298 5 (Z6Z°00v7) § (Sov'ie0z) § TTV'I6T  § (€€5'sz9) S (1Trbew) § (ss01)/swadul 18N
- s - g - s E: § = s - S B s = S - g B = 5 - s - B NQ (u)) sssysues)
- $ = $ - S E S = s - S s s - s - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 3507 Bupasuiuy
{1se've) ¢ s9z'ew S PISUT H (L15'1€)  § TwT'Le § 5295 $ ooL'sks & lozo'szl  $ ovs'zy $ pISYT $ (s16'77) ¢ ops'se $ 5795 $
— — —
Ib8T'062'T) § (89L622) S (156%6107) § L14'98 S (E06715) 5 (98vsee) S| |otsven & TOB'ZEE  § (2SL(SET) § (156'6107) $ 105831 § (666'96%) S (980'sen) o uonenaidaq saye (ss01)/awoou) 19N
(LL1'89) S e8v'e87'z $ cI0'TTE'Z ¢ (ov8'L1) $ 195'TUs  § TTLWSS  § 09T'vL6'9  § (80£'€0T)  § oOTL'vTe'T ¢ C10'TTTT $ (6st'9t) $ 081188 $ TZL'PSS  § uonepasdag
f———— =T _—
ZTL'655T 190'102 £45'89 5 859'LS § SET9er  § YYE'6LL'D  § e60'vez  § (ze0eel  § 190’0z ¢ 8v0'zeT S (erg'st) 5 sezerr  § uopenardaq a1053q (ss01)/3wosu 19N
_—mmm.aﬁ $ 980°4v0'T § (e6Z'v9)  § bev'at $ lose'ez) & (esz't) $ 64£'599'9 § E00'9Y $ loog'otr) ¢ (e62%9) Z60'ET $ (segfor) ¢ (esz'a) s (sasuadxg)/sanuanay Sunesado-uoy jero)
(PTOPTO'T) § O0E9'6E0T § 9T9'sT $ 919'sT $ = $ 919'sz S 000°0E S 919'6T $ 000’0t $ 919'sz S 9TT'ET S 00SC $ 919'sz s $195SY PaXI4 JO 3|eS uo uley
= § @ § F S - s - s - S ? S . s - S - $ = s - § - s (ssuadx3) uoneziuowy
(09s'90T) ¢ tzs90T  § (9g) $ 859'TT s (8s9'tr) 5 - S - s (9g) s - s (9€) S - [ ¢ - 3 SIUBWISBAL| WO SSOT/UleD) paziealun
(bpe 1) S 0918t $ 9189 S {909°9T) S 058'8T S we' $ 966'vC S (915°1) $ ee's $ 918’9 S 19T $ €80 744 s SWOdU| JUBUIISIAUY
9LT'OF $ - $ 91ov S 600 s - S 600'C S 6LZ'7T0'T  $ 9/T'0% s - S 9LT'ov S 600'C S - $ 600T B Siueto) 21e)S g [BI2PaY
S0€'LT $ (op9'0LT) & (geEg’esT)  § L6t's $ (099'2h) $ (goT'ze) $ (966'29%)  $ 000'T S (zee'vsT)  $ (zee'sst) ¢ o't $ (e85°8g) S (e91'ze) s sasuadxy xe| Aladolg
{0s6'9) $ TIv'ee § z9v'ot S (00£'TT) $ 't $ Tt s 0051909 $ (8g7'6) S 00L'ST S 79v'et S (ET9'ET) $ seo'eT $ 7T s snuanay Xxe] 1aLpQ pue Auadoly
(S3SN3dX3)/SINNIATY DNILVHIJO-NON
{scz'ive) $ 9e9e1s  § Bsesac S vOL'2S S vIv'iE § L[ISEET S S9S'ETT  § 060881  § 89LLL $ BSE'SIE S SS6'8ZT 5 295t S LISEEl S {ss07)/awodu) Sunesado
0E1'9Z § 009'%6EY'T $ OELSAT S SvE'OY $ LVE'BOE  § s69's0F  § £sv'ze0’s  $| |loto'6ET)  § ObL'vO9'T § OEL'SSKT §  (SeRE) S 885'TIr ¢ E69'8O0F  § $150) V89 |el0L
0st'os S Lb'tsy S [eg'tos S SrE's S PEL'IT S 08B'WIT S ¥ES'STL'T S (£60'Es} S PEEYES & [6B'TOS S lo£9'zT) S 0S9'/ET 5 O0BE'%IT S 183uaD 3314 38edng
(B09'ET) $ See'sET  $ o TIT $ (80T'6) S TLEWY $ €97'sE S TET09Y S fato'sz)  $ coL'WT  $ ovs'TZT ¢ (peg’s) S LS9'0b S €9Z'se $ qnD |09 SuipueT slielg
(1tv'o1) ¢ eeb'zss  § /s0Tb8 S 80T'TY S weor  $ osv'sve S 8829687 ¢ | |leem'os) ¢ vss'cee  § [s0'TB 69141 $ T18Tver S osv'svz  § suopelado uodily
JAILVHLSINIWAY ONY TV¥INIO
BPT'1ZE) § 9ET'ESET § BBO'IELT § BYH'Z6 S 19L6bF 5 OIZZbs S 810'96T'S § 080°6t $ 8007B9'T § BBO'IELT $ 090's2T  § OSTZTy  $ OIZ'ZbS  § (ss01)/ay014 ssoin
Z00'89  $ OTL'90B'Z § ZIL'WITE 8TT'9z $ 06Z'S6L  § BIS'TZR  § OTE'0S6'0T S (z89'2s1)  § WBELZE'E § ZULBiTE ¢ (e68'09) $ trv'zee ¢ sIS'Tee S s3|es Jo 150) [e10)
osy's0r S OP'IECT S 9ERTOLT S 230'e8 S 99L'vbE S TERUIF S 956'860°'S & trE'E S ?59'ese’t S 9ERTOLT S BI6Z S EISWIP § eI S 123u9) 3114 98egng
(8bE'T9) $ rsz8'9se  $ eLv'seT $ 9589 $ TC0TeT  $ L48%TT  $ S08'8€8'T & (z9o'2v) & wwswe  $ eLv'ser (E16'2T)  $ 06LTYT ¢ L/8'87T $ qn| 409 Suipue] suteld
006'6T S LEVLST'T § SEELLTT (¥69'€9) 5 €0S'8ZE $ 608'v9T  $ 6rSTIOY  § (€98°20T) $ TOZ'SST'T $ BEELLTT § (668'05)  $ 80L'sTE ¢ 608997 $ suoneiado uodiy
SISNIdX3 ONILVHIJO
YSE'OVT  § 9v6'8sL’y $ oos'soe'y $ LL9'STT  § 150°SeE’T § BELE9E'T $ 82E9PT'9T §| |(Z09%€0T) § Z0V'600'S $ 008’06’y L91'¥9 $ 1956621 $ BTL'E9ET § sanuanay |e30)
vIZ'9LE 5 S9S'LLL'T S 6LLESTE S 06’9l S LL¥EDL S LTIFeER S 899'608'6 5 LLe'vet) 5 9S5°89T°fE § BLLESTE S 82’61 S BETLT8 & [IY'9ER S 123ua) W31 4 98edng
(sov'sz)  $ 68Ty ¢ 0l6%68E ¢ (6/8'0T)  § o0ss's6T  § T/9'T8T § 6SS'ELST  § 898°L S COT'Z8E § 0L6'68E ¢ (evs'T) S PITY8T  § TL9T8T ¢ anfd 4|00 Butpue] suleld
(156°002) & Z00'E9S'T $ TS0'Z9ET § 9197 S5 bTOTHE S Oob9'bre % TOT'49L°E  § LOE'E S bUL'BSE'T § TSO'TIET § TEV'OY $ BOZ'BSC $ OVO'BPE S suonesado oday
ajueuep 9107 1107 adueuep 9102 LT02 199png ajueuep 123png jemay Jduenep 138png feny SINNIAIY|
QLA uopy |enuuy /107 QLA yiuow
LT0Z/OEfv Buipul yivow i 04
SISNIXI ANV SINNIAFY JO INIWILVLS
Auoyiny woduyy afedng |eoy




37

— =
8p9'sLT'T) § (TTT'SZST) $ (652°058°7) § LOS'LS $ (1oe'e0s)  § (ese'sos) $ SZH'IT9'ES) BEVBVE S (L6T66TEl $ (65L'058'2) $ OIS'9ET  § (oeezv8]l  § $ (sso1)/awodu) 19N
E 5 - $ = B * 5 5 = s 0s * 5 - $ = 5 = 5 = g = 3 N0 (u)) s1aysuely
- § = s E S . s s - N 0s " $ - $ = S * q: - § = S 5350 Bunaau(Bug
(z61°2) $ leg's S SHT'L S (P12'%) S PITY G = S 000'85t% (559'9) S 008'€l S spT'z s (o0g'cT) $ 008'ST s - 3 soueumUIely Jofely
() $ (L5951 S (bI9EvRZ) § E6Z'ES ¢ levr'ssz) 5 (vse'sol) § (SZH'EST'ES €8L°TVE 5 (L6E'SST'E] S (VIOEV8D) $ oTLzet  § (045'828) $ (bsBsol) uopeidaq Jaye (s507)/3wodu| 19N
(os9'8s) ¢ 9ze's9z'e ¢ 9sT'soTT $ (€8€'ST) S 0LT'99S § 182088 § ¥96'9269 § let'eot)  $ sse'sos’c § 9sz'soTr S (tov'or)  § svT’ees  $ 1820ss ¢ uolzeldaidaq
51869 606'LE $ lL6eell 6 [890sstl BES'ELL'ES 1,086 § (6009/8) § [BeE’8E9) S 55296 $ (eze'tsz)  § (goo'sst)  § nadaq 210)q (s507)/aw0du} 19N
{oso'9zt't) § sS80'stT't $  SE0'T 5§ LOBZT $ bhL $ 0sS'Er $ SLL'STE'9S £00'9¥ 5 (896'92) $ sSE06I s Z60'ET 5 8k $ 0SS'EL s (sasuadx3)/sanuanay Sunesadg-uon jeroy
(¥T0vTO'T) & o0€9'6e0'T ¢ 919'sT S 91957 g » S 919'sz S 000°0E S 919'sT $ 00001 § 919'6e s 9TT'eT § 005 $ 919'sz $ 519sSY paxi4 o 8[es Uo Ujeg
- [ S - S * 9 - S = S x S = S = § - s - s - 5 - $ (2suadx3} voneziiowy
lpgs’aot)  § veseor  $ (9g) s 859'TT § (8s9'tr)  § - s * S (o€) § = 5 (9€) H - s - 5 - S SIUSWISSAUL WolY s507/UleD) pazjesiun
(eve'ttl  § esTsp S 9189 S (90991} & 0s8'8T S vhe'T S 966'7T S (a15'1) S TeEB 5§ 9189 S 19T § €80T S $ 2WODU| JUBUNSaAY|
9/T'0t 5 - S 9LTOF s 600'C s - $ 6007 $ 6/Z'TIOT $ 9LT'OF s - FRTA R s 600'C § - $ 600C S sjuelg 21815 g [eIspay
09T s {ov9'zz) s (ooo'0s) ¢ 0€8'T s (o91'8T) ¢ f(oee'9T) S (oo0'eT2)  § 000'T s (oo0'ts) 5 (ooo'0s) % 0ZF'T $ {losc'zt) % (oseot) ¢ sasuadx3 xe) Anadold
ioss'a) 5 Ipse $ Zov'9t S (00£'TT) $ Lt $ T S 0051909 $ (eezs) $ ooL'st 5 Tot'ot ] (€19€T) § see'et $ 2t $ anuanay Xe 1ay10 pue Ausdoiyd
(S3SNIX3)/SINNIATY DNILYHIJO-NON
==
0Tz, (EE6"I0Y) ELE'LSY) Z01'SZ § (0zL'e61) § (319891) § (9€2°2vT'ES) 890'Z6T (Tvb'6v8 (E££°259) § £91'e8 S (82150 $ (s19’ger) § (sso7)/ewaduy Buneradg
(1I6'01)  § ®6v'2s8 § LBOTB  $ 80Z'TH $ eye'ior § 0sK'KZ S 88£'968'2% (168'08) $ t8e'zze  § f80'zvE  § 69T'pT $ IBPEE  § osv'svE  $ 5150 V'8D [E10)
(S£0°%Z) S vOp'Ell  § 6868 [ (ab1] S OpT'EZ s 186TT 3 865°0SE & lsoe’21]  § S69'901 § e8ces [T S BELT S 1862 B Supunodsy
(sL2'9z) S SEO'LY $ 09L'0¢ S L12'T $ 1198 S 886 [ 005'60T % (ovL'sT) $ 0059 $ 09L'0¢ S €04 S sZt'6 $ gz8's S Bunasie|y/'asq ssauisng
o6t S 9/8%E S [9E'SE $ 957 $ 0858 $ 9088 5 9EY'VOT  § =1 S TI8'PE $ L9E'sE S £0T $ €08 $ 9087 $ SIUOISSIWWOD)
6bb'6E S ETTS9 S TS99 S £88'6€ $ Tp6'99T & sze'eor  § ¥ST'TEET $ (gov'sy)  $ LL6WbL S TS'969  § Te'LT $ 80687 ¢ sz8'90z BANRIS|UILPY
JALVYLSININGY ANY TYHINID
{tss0cz) § S95'S0r 5 MILVBT S 01£'99 $ TIS'ET S TER'6L 5 8vb'shes- TIT'TIT 5 EVS'EL S VIL'V8T & ZEE'L6 $ {00s'LT) S TERBL 5 {sso1)/1g044 sso19
00661 $ LEVUST'T § BEELT'T §  (v69't9) $ EOS'SZE S 608'v9T S 6STT0VS (€98°20T) 5 TOZ'S8ZT'T $ BEELLT'T §  (668°0S) § BOL'SIE  $ 60BMOZ S S3IeS JO 150 |e10).
(2918 S LS8'ET S SPESDT 5 66T'E $ LSB'EZ 5 9sD'(E S SB909E S TT'L S BIEWDT 5 SHSSOT S 34 $ L00'LT S 98042 3 WBWaINd0Id 1§ s199f01yg
{£56) $ Tro'zsT  $ 989'1sT ¢ +80'C $ 6S0'ZE S EPT'vE 5 006'tts S (z1E'8T) S 866'69T & 989'TsT ¢ (e8z’s) S 9'er S EYTvE $ suonesadg ‘dinbg doyg
€LE'9 S 09 $ £v0'T8 S (esT'0T) $ €L5TT S PIPTT s wuy9er 8 (tat'21) & ves'se $ Ev0'18 S {zez'et) ¢ 90s'vz S PP S 423U Y34
28025 S 90v'98C  $ 88b'REE  § (909°€) S €L5'0L $ £96'99 S 661'TTI0'T § LL6'8 S TIS6ZE 5 88¥'see  § {eg6'eT) S 00608 S £96'99 $ suolyesado Bul
(982'61T) ¢ 79B'6T9 $ 95005 $ (ztz'ss) S Tpr'eLT & 8TTWIT 8 €62'66L'T S e¢e't8) 5 evs'z8s  § 95005  § (Tvy'sT)  $ 699%6ET  $ ezTVIT ¢ suonesado pia1y
SISNIdXI ONILYYIJO
(156°002) § Z00'E9S'T § TSO'ZIET $ 9197 $ BIO'ZPE S OVO'vEE S TOT'292°€$ LOEE 5 vROBSE'T § TSOTZ9ETT § [ S BOZ'BEZ S OvI'MPE S3NUINDY [e10)
s15'% s 0971 § BLE'se S 6017 § sI8T S bZE'6T s 885577 $ £89 5 96T'sL S 6LE'SL S SET'T $ 66L°8T S vIE'6T S 13037 3N
(bes'esT)  $ 00L'996  $ 99TvI8 $ (ote’9g) ' o0sgOKT $ Ol6'E0T 0S6TEVT S 18V S 69608 $ 99T¥I8  § SLT'T $ T6LTOT S OL6E0T ¢ suonessdo Buip|ing
(osL's6) & 989'’tt  § 9g6'BLE S yIT'S S €S6'0L S /909 S Lpr'1se § (tos'zy) & (ev'Tzy $ gse'sLE ¢ £5TT $ ¥ZS€9 S [90'9L S suonesadg pjal4
¥IL'9b S 9SE‘9r $ 0L0°€6 5 £0€'2E S 9LETT S 690 s 9TT'LST  § 86907 § TETS $ 0L0'E6 $ 985'TE S E60'ET $ 6.9 $
aduelep 910 L10Z Jdueurep 9107 LT0Z 198png aduelep 1adpng feny dueurep 198png |enly SINNIAIY
alA uopy fenuuy /107 17} Yiuow
LT0Z/0E /v Buipu3 oW 9yl so4
SISN3dX3 ANV SINNIAIY 40 LNIWILVLS
uonesisiviwpy pue podily




38

SISNIJXI ANV SIINIATY JO INFWILVLS

433u3) 343y|4 23edng

T ‘- “~ ——— # Tﬂj 5 ., .HHHH.I =
(962'z8)  § BSU'L20T $ Zee'tb6 S ST6'SE $ EI'ONZ  § GEETBT S 986'S96C S (vZ6'E8 $ OvB'SI0T § TIEWYE S 620'6C $ OIE'ESZ  § GEETBT S (ss01)/owodu) 30N
(051°1) S viz'9 $ ¥90's S (882) S €SS'T $ 997’1 s T6T'ST $ 0 S ¥90's $ t90's S {0) $ 992'T $ 997'T $ uonepaidag
rﬁﬁm S WEEEOT § 9866V §  B9SE  § L6l 5 S9esr 5| |Brisec 3| |Geees] g Oioce0T § o%6eve 8 606§ siene T swar o uonenaidag a105eq (ss01)/owoau] 19N
== B —
[Geeem S TZLE'EE0'T § 9BG6Y6 S 829'SE S L6'vT  § S09'EST $ BLLT86Z §| |(be6eR) S ODIG'EE0T § 98666 S 620'6¢ $ 9/5'%5Z  § S09'E8T S (ss01)/owodu) Sunesadg
0ST'0S S LTSy $ 168105 ¢ 743 $ PELOTT S 086'PTT S PES'STLT  § (£60'€E)  § vee'vES ¢ (68'T0S  § (0z9'zT)  § 0S9'4eT $ 086'bCT S IAILVYLSININGY OGNV TYYINID|
— - R — s -
9€Z'EE)  $§ GITSBY'T § EBE'ISK'T S ELR'EY § TIL'P9E  § SBS'8O0F  § eriool’y  $| |(reo'eim) v06'895'T 65E'9T § 9ZL'Z6E  § sSBSEOV % (s501)/19014 s5019)
0st'60F 5 O9VP'IEZ'T $ 96E'TOLT $ 990'e8 $ 99L'vPE  § ZERLZVY  $ 956'860'S S ez $ 259'669'T § o68'TOL'T $§ 6I6'Z $ EI6'vEy § zes'lzy  $ S3]eS JO 3507 [eY0L
[ 5 T06%6L § 9ET'SL H (z99's) S5 995'1C $ EDE9T S voa'vie  § 897 S BIE'WL $ SET'SL B [CE] S LuBt S EOE'ST 3 saurUAUIEN
(g98't) § €956 S G69'TT s (s6v) $ 09t'9 § S96's S 94" H (eeg'e) § 765°SC $ S69'TT H (eep) § 86E9 $ §96'S $ $903 - pood
£80'S § bbI'EE $ TEL'SE $ 80T'T § [S58 § 9996 S 000021 s| (lesz't) S 0000 § TEL'SE s (vee) § 00001 S 999 S asuadx3 pue) Hpasd
(ga0’er) & crT'or S T S & 5 - 5 - s 966'tC s (3818} S 7ee S vhl s (€80'7) S £80C S - S SPOOK) 40 3500 331 3Q
¥90'€Ey  § O9TT'EETT $ T6T99ST § ST1'88 § €8LL06 & s8e8'ses S 08s'Ts9'y TEE'ST § 098'0SS'T § T6T'995'T $ €8T'8 § STLt8E ¢ ge8'set  § 58[ES J0 150 |10 pUe fan4
SISNIXI ONLLYHILO
VIZ'OLE  § SOS'LEL'T § GLLESTE § OP6'9ZE  § LLv60L  § [Iv'9ER  § 8995086 § | [{eee'vTr) § 9S5'B9TE § GLLESTE ¢ BLL'6T $ GET'LIB  § [LIv9ER aNUaAdY [eroL
90E 5 T8SE S BEBT $ 18T S 688 S 9i07 H r0Z'6 S logt) S BIDE S 8887 ] 3 s L9 S 90T S | enuaasy sdueualUleIN/asRET/IUDY Pl3ILIY UON
qum,: § 8SE9 $ €I8% $ €0€ S LUTT 5 6LPT 3 000'7C H (81E) $ 0008 5 €18% S (12s) $ 000 S BLY'T $ Suneie) Yeiuy
lesv'1tl  § 9ov'iT S ve'sT S S0L § SIS S O0ECE S 9TE'6S s| [let8'e) S ziL'et S vee'sT S (eTL'T) S EWEY S ogTe s 1310 @dIAI8S BUI
2 s - s - S L s - - s (00s"¢E) s 005'ZT § (oos'et) s - S [ra % $ (gqz1e) $ - $ 218qaY SLWLN|OA
PRS'6TY 3 [90'8€9'T $ TS9/S0'E § vE6'LTT  § TCT'E89  § YSO'TI8 S vbo'ser’s (e68'90T)  § 8YS'HOT'E § TS9°LS0'E $ L16'6T S LETTBL S PSOTI8 § s3|es |10 pue |3ny
(o) 5 tOT'S S pe0'S $ 1411 8§ LSET S TLV'T S 00022 s| [less’s) $ 0006 § vEO'S S j144 $ 08T S TLY'T $ $834 BIUIBAQ 1§ sumoq 31| dusey
(®¢5'08) § 8b0'86 S 0LvLe S (eogT) S 60¥6T S 90141 s ¥00°0€2 4 (#61°8) $ 8999/ S 0Lv'L3 S (1907} S 19761 $ 90T'LT ¢ sjeyuay Jeduey
SINNIATY
dueLep 910¢ £107 uenep 9102 £102 128png aueuen 1a8png BNy EIETTY 12dpng ey
aLa yuow [BnuuY 107 alA iuow
£102/0€/e Buipu3 WUy B3 J03




39

5V'T6 $ (080'vze) § [8z9'ter) § TSV $ (8or'se)  § (96S'0T)  § {LL0'56%) ETE'86 ¢ (ive'sze) 5 (gzo'Ter) 11852 § (eLv'og)  § [s6S'o1) § (sso7)/awoou] 19N
. $ - $ - s . § = s - $ 0s$ * S - s - s o § e 5 - S O (u]) siaysuel
(655°22) $ B8T6'TE $  69£'0T S (€0€'L2) $ 8ze'te $ sz9's $ 004485 (12€°8T) S ovL'se S 69£°0T S (s11'6) S ovi'vT § §79's s 22uRUSIUIR Jole|A
(£9'8) S 6bE'6T $ z9o1 $ {6912 S Le8'% $ 8997 $ $00°2€$ ¥ $ 89901 $ w9t $ T S 1997 § 8997 s uonielsaidag
f— ——— =
91Z'19 s (eos'ter)  § (ess'otr) s (096't) $ 8597 $ (Z0E2) B £29'vTS S¥6'6L $ lees’oer)  § (48s'otr) $ ¥aL'91 $ (990'61)  § (20€2) H ‘Ipv '8 uonenaidag asoyaq (ss01)/swodu| 30N
= $ - $ - $ - s - S = S . $ : $ - S = $ 2 § m § @ S SI955Y PaIXI4 4O 3jes Uo ules
fo) S T S 0 S (o) $ 0 [ $ - $ 0 s - $ 0 S - s - S - $ 2WOdU| JUBUISIAU|
899'%T s fooo'se) s (zeg'en) S £99'¢ $ {00s'v2) $ {ees’oz) S (966'6125) - S [zee'es) $ (zeg'es) S - s (eeg’o?) $ (eg8'02) $ sasuadx3 xe| Auadosq
(SISN3dX3)/SINNIATY DNILVHI4O-NON
X * — -
svsor S (vog'es)  § (osz’ezl 3 (29wl S 5T § TES'ST s €29vLZ  § SY6'6L § (tozzonl s (oseed) S voL'91  § forT § TESST s {ss07)/2woou; Junesadg
{(609'€T) $ SSE'SET S owL'Ter ¢ (BOT'6) S TLE'WY $ €9z'se $ TET'09PS (910'52) S ToL'ert S owLTIT S (vee’s) S Ls9'ov $ €9z'se S JAILVYISINIWGY ANV TVHINID
BEG'ZE s 25519 S I6V'Y6 $ (VELLT)  § sestiL $ PBLES s YSLVEL  § OE6'tS $ T95'6E 5 T6¥'v6 5 OLE'TT BTG S BBL'ES 5 {ss01) /34014 sso19
__»5;5 $ LIB'9SE  § Giv'S6T  $ 9589 § wWo'wr § Lesr § S08'8€8'T S| [{z90’zp)  § TwSZTRE  § 6LVS6Z S [ET6'ZT) 6 O06L'TbT  § L8821 § 53]es J0 150 [e10),
{soz'T) S BBEOT $ S6L6 S (1€9) S 9947 S vETZ S 008'8C S (sov) S 009' S S6I'6 5 [EEH) S 00%'% 5 PETZ s 240 ¥meH Ay - 006d
(6€¢) $ TsL'T $ €07 ] (pee) S LEET $ EIOT S Tv6'9S $ 0 $ E10'T S €107 S 0 S E10'T S €10 S SBUND 4109 - 002d
(€09) s sTet $ w9t s (€1v) $ 1909 $ 8r9's S TIL'sE $ (85 $ s80'TT $ w9t S €40 S Sis'e S 8b9's s SIUSAZ 31eAld - 009d
(259'7) S PLT'ES § L1905 H b8 S L60°0C $ T1¥6'0C s vIT'esT  $ (s106) s 7E9'6S s L19'0g $ £86 $ ¥S6'6T $ TP6'0T $ s3UIPPaM - 005d
(ST8'Y) S T18L'0S § 997'9% H (915°T) $ TOE'0T S S8L8T S LETBIE  § {oze'tt)  $ 9s1'8s $ 99z'or S (oe2's) S SI§%T S S8L'8T S a8eJ3n9g pue pood - 00Pd
{866'0C) & 04548 $ TS99 ] L19°S S 6EEBL § §S6'vE S LT9'E8E S (6L1) S 15.'99 S TL5'99 S 61ST S 9ev'EE S GS6'%E H suonerado |09 - 0DEd
{1e9'0¢) S 9LL'6ET & SHT'60T & 08z'c S ozt'ey S 00b'sy S SBETIL S (621'97) S PLT'SET 5 SkTEOT S (L6v'TT) S 168'9S S 00¥'sy s 2oUBRUAUIRIA JjO9 - 00Zd
SISNIAXI ONILVYIJO
|leov'ssl s etesiv 5 olsese (6£8'01)  § 0sS'661 $ TL9T8T S 6SS'ELST § B98'L S TOT'ZBE  $ Ou6'6BE  §  (EvST) $ vIiZval  § TeoTst § anuaAdy jero)
{soz'T) $ 66EDT $ S61'6 H (1€9) S 9T S PETT 5 00887 S [E] 5 0096 S SBI6 S [EEH] S oobez S PELT S 248D ymeH Au - 006d
LZy'L $ 826's $ PSE'ET $ 4:14:1 s usvy $ PSE'ET S S9L'TeE S (se6'2) $ 68791 S PSE'ET $ {se6'7) S 68291 S pSE'ET $ s3unng yjoo - 00£d
414 $ TLETY § 629ty $ {¢95T) $ pse'sz $ (8L'ET $ GYE'TYT S L66°E $ TE9'sE $ 679'ty $ EVZ'S S PS'ST S (8L'€e s 51UBAJ 3)RALd - 009d
(e60'77)  § ETL'sV § 0€9'/T S (8z0°2) $ BESVE $ o015t s 00687 $ 0£7°T $ 00v'9T $ 089'/T S 0I8ET $ 00L'ET $ o15'cT $ sBUIPpaM - 00Sd
(188’5} $ 685'ST § 859'6T $ (zv8T) $ €06'0C $ 790'6T 5 0SZ'9TE  $ (z6v'y) $ 0ST%T $ 8s9'61 $ (880°S) S 05T $ 790°%6T s a8e.aA9g pUE Poo - 00Fd
(6vL'S) S 78§ €Lb9sT S (zoz's) $ IYOT  $ 08€96 $ SE6'TSYT  $ [4z4()8 S TET99T  $ el'orz  § (TSe'sT)  § TELTIT 0896 S suoiessdq 4100 - 00ed
(v91'1) $ 9617 § TE0'T 5 (ze) S 9y S bbb S 00S'E S [414 $ 008 S TEO'T S 44 $ oov S v S uoiensIuiwpy Jjo9 - 00Td
IJUBLIeA 910¢ L102 2IueMEA 910Z £T0Z 193png adueuep 13ipng |lendy LTINS 128png jenpy SINNIAY
alA [ lenuuy /107 LA uoy
LT0Z/0E /v BUIpU3 (AUON a1y 103
S3ISNIAXI GNV SINNIAY 40 INIWILYLS
qnp) 310D Sujpue auseld




WNd 0€:L LL0Z/viS

o
<
%0000} %2858 %E0°S %8S ¢ %8LS %000 i[E10L 0 Juesag
¥5'£96°L6 29°8¢6'8L £5°¢Z9'y 06'80L'c BY°ZLE'S - ‘lejoL wodey
%8Y'0 00'ib 00'vib . - - - OT1°0¥3V SNAWNT0D Z0V0OY
%GL'L 00°'809'} - 00'809'L - - . "ONI ‘131 D4NGWNYHOS LOIPS-V
%2h'Z Lr9p6'L zz'8sy 00°vLy £v'88Y 92'56% i Buises kemuso LOTIOY
%St'Z V9'E52'Z v9'59 - : 00'881'2 - OT1'SONIQTIOH LIvHOYIV Nar Lovar-y
%E69 \'ZLe'9 20'16L'Y SLLLY 69055 56855 c 071 SONIQTOH 308N0S3Y LOHIY-Y
%SZ L1 06'8vE0L 95'6EL'Y 8'690' 8/'690' 826902 . INIWLYVC3A 30N0d 31V1S 10ads-v
%LS €l 8Y'E8Y'Zl 8Y'E8y'Zl - : - . TOHLYd HIV TIAID 10dIoY
%SY'1L9 0.'925'95 0L'925'95 . s 2 . NOLLVIAY SSIMdXT TIAVHL LOVIL-Y
|10l [e10L anplanQ sheg anpieAQ sheg anpiaAQ skeq enpiaaQ skeq LLIOEIY0 SWEN Jewoisn) ‘ON 18uojsny
0% +16 063 19 0903 1g 0c o1y ©weung
ALRIOHINY
an( 1sed sAeq (9 19A0 104y 35vdn(g
| Jo | abey Hoday Buiby ajqeAlassy sjunosdy

‘\Ill..’.l’llte



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: DanBarmma T
Operations and Capital Program Manager

THROUGH: David Bird B‘
Executive Diréctor

RE: Proposed Ordinance 2017-311; An Ordinance Amending the DuPage Airport
Authority Procurement Policy

DATE: April 21,2017

SUMMARY:
Staff proposes changes to Sections 6-10 Contract Duration and 6-12 Option Periods of the

Procurement chapter of the DuPage Airport Authority Code. The proposed changes would allow
flexibility for certain types of unique contracts that have a longer term such as the Engineering
Consultant Agreement or the Fuel Provider Agreement; both of which allow for a term of up to
five (5) years. The current Code has a requirement that contract terms may not exceed four (4)
years in duration; requiring the Board to waive the requirements of the Code when approving a

longer term contract.

Staff also encounters certain types of unique contracts that may not be in the best interest of the
Authority to change services, equipment or software upon the expiration of a 4-5 year contract
term due to the significant costs or operational burdens that may be incurred. Examples of these

unique contracts include:

Timeclock & Payroll Services

Point-of-Sale System Services

Security and Access Control System Services
Telephone Equipment Services

Fuel Dispensing Systems Services

Network and Data Hosting Services

@ @ @ @ & o

The proposed changes to Sections 6-10 and 6-12 of the Procurement Code address the above
issues and are explained in a memo from counsel attached.

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:
April 26, 2017 Internal Policy and Compliance Committee — this item is being reviewed by the

Committee.

REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:
Not applicable.

41



STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:
Not applicable.

LEGAL REVIEW:
Legal counsel has drafted the proposed revisions to Sections 6-10 and 6-12 (Procurement) of the

DuPage Airport Authority Code.

ATTACHMENTS:
a Memo from legal counsel.
a Proposed Ordinance 2017-311; An Ordinance Amending the DuPage Airport
Authority Procurement Policy.
@ Current Section 6-10 and 6-12.
o Proposed Section 6-10 and 6-12.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:
It is the recommendation of the Executive Director and Staff that the Board approve Proposed

Ordinance 2017-311; An Ordinance Amending the DuPage Airport Authority Procurement
Policy.

42



MEMORANDUM

TO: DuPage Airport Authority Policy Committee

FROM: Phillip A. Luetkehans
Brian J. Armstrong

SUBJECT: Amendments to Sections 6-10 and 6-12 (Procurement) of DAA Code
DATE: April 21,2017

FILE: DAA 2407

Pursuant to the request of Staff, and in conjunction with Staff, we have prepared proposed
amendments to Sections 6-10 and 6-12 of the Procurement chapter of the DAA Code.

The change to Section 6-10 clarifies the existing policy that contracts longer than one year
typically should be written with a one year term with options to extend, but also adds that
extensions should not exceed a total of five years. Further, the section now clarifies that that the
criteria set forth in Section 6-12 be considered in deciding whether to exercise the option to

extend.

However, the second paragraph of Section 6-10 is new and permits the Board of Commissioners
to specifically approve a contract with a longer initial term of up to five (5) years and allows the
Board to approve extensions for up to five (5) additional years. Again, the criteria in Section 6-
12 are to be considered. This modification is being recommended because certain contracts are
not amenable to annual terms and annual renewals and the DuPage Airport Authority is better
served by some contracts having longer terms and longer extension periods (e.g. fuel providers,
engineers, architects, timeclocks, point-of-sale systems, etc.).

Section 6-12 is amended to clarify the criteria to be considered in deciding whether to exercise
an option to extend a contract.

We recommend enactment of these modifications to the Procurement section of the DAA Code.

43



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-311
AMENDING THE DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY PROCUREMENT POLICY

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority (hereinafter the "Authority") is a duly
authorized and existing airport authority under the laws of the State of Illinois;

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously enacted the DuPage Airport Authority Code
(hereinafter the "Code") regarding rules, regulations, standards, practices and policies applicable
to the Authority, users of the airport and the public;

WHEREAS, as set forth in Chapter 6 of the Code (titled “Procurement”), the Authority
has implemented policies regarding procurement of goods and services;

WHEREAS, the Policy Committee of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority has
reviewed the proposed amendments and recommends that the amendments be approved; and

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it to be in the best interests of the Authority, users of
the airport and the public to amend certain provisions of Sections 6-10 and 6-12 of Chapter 6 of
the Code as set forth in Exhibit 1 attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority that the DuPage Airport Authority Code be, and hereby is, amended
by amending Sections 6-10 and 6-12 of Chapter 6 of the Code as set forth in Exhibit 1.

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and
approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority
this 17th day of May, 2017.

CHAIRMAN
(ATTEST)

SECRETARY

44



6-10

6-12

CURRENT

CONTRACT DURATION. The length or duration of Contracts for goods or
services may be written for a period up to but not to exceed four (4) years, unless
circumstances or conditions exist which are documented to be in the best interest
of the DuPage Airport Authority to enter into Contracts for longer periods of time.
Each requirement will be closely looked at by the Executive Director to determine
the duration of the requirement to ensure the DuPage Airport Authority will benefit
from Contracts with longer or shorter durations. The normal procedure for
Contracts that are longer than one (1) year in duration will be to write them on a
yearly basis with option-to-extend provisions, which will be exercised at the sole
discretion of the DuPage Airport Authority each year contingent upon annual
appropriations of the DuPage Airport Authority.

OPTION PERIODS. Contractors should be notified in writing of the DuPage
Airport Authority’s intent whether to exercise an option period within thirty (30)
calendar days from the expiration date of the current Contract period. The DuPage
Airport Authority will consider the following criteria prior to exercising or entering
into an extension of a Contract under an option provision:

(a) Contractor has performed satisfactorily under original Contract
term.

(b) Services are still required under the Contract.

(c) Current market conditions have not changed from original Contract,
therefore the contractor’s prices under the option period are still
considered fair and reasonable.

(d) Scopes of services have not significantly changed from original
Contract. (If scopes of services are significantly changed then re-bid
of Contract is recommended.)

(¢) Contractor has fully complied with all political contribution
disclosure requirements under this Chapter.

45



PROPOSED EXHIBIT 1

6-10 CONTRACT DURATION. The normal procedure for Contracts that are longer than
one (1) year in duration will be to write them on a yearly basis with option-to-extend provisions
provided that the initial term and all extensions shall not exceed five (5) years in total. The
decision to exercise an option to extend a Contract will be at the sole discretion of the DuPage
Airport Authority each year and shall be contingent on annual appropriations of the DuPage
Airport Authority and shall consider the criteria set forth in Section 6-12.

If the Board of Commissioners expressly finds it to be in the best interest of the DuPage Airport
Authority to do so, the Board of Commissioners may approve a Contract with an initial term of
up to five (5) years with annual options to extend the Contract for up to five (5) additional years
if the Board of Commissioners deems it in the best interests of the DuPage Airport Authority to
do so. The decision to exercise an option to extend such a Contract will be at the sole discretion
of the Board of Commissioners in each option period and shall be contingent on annual
appropriations of the DuPage Airport Authority. In deciding whether to extend such a Contract
beyond the initial term, the Board of Commissioners shall consider at a minimum the criteria set

forth in Section 6-12.

6-12 CONTRACT EXTENSION. In deciding whether to renew or extend a Contract
beyond its initial term, the following criteria shall be considered prior to exercising the option to
extend or entering into a renewal:

(a) The need to extend the Contract for goods and services is unique and it is in the best
interest of the Authority to do so.

(b) The Contractor has performed satisfactorily under the original Contract term.

(c) The services are still required under the Contract.

(d) The current market conditions have not changed from the original Contract, therefore
the contractor’s prices are still considered fair and reasonable.

(¢) The scope of services has not significantly changed from the original Contract. (If
the scope of services is significantly changed then re-bid of the Contract is
recommended).

(f) The Contractor has fully complied with all political contribution disclosure
requirements under this Chapter.

Contractors should be notified in writing of the DuPage Airport Authority’s intent to exercise or
decline to exercise an option at least thirty (30) calendar days before the expiration date of the

current Contract term.

46



_ JNV

DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Dan Barna w
Operations and Capital Program Manager

THROUGH: David Bird @/
Executive Dir&ct

RE: Proposed Ordinance 2017-312; An Ordinance Amending the DuPage Airport
Authority Employee Handbook

DATE: April 21,2017

SUMMARY:

As part of the Airport Authority’s significant security improvements that occurred shortly after
September 11, 2001; the Authority implemented a photo ID access control badge program for
employees, tenants and contractors who require unescorted access to restricted areas (primarily
the Airport Operations Area “AOA”) of the airport.

Such badging program is consistent with recommendations from Transportation Security
Administration Guidelines for General Aviation Airports that was published in May of 2004.
Since the inception of the Authority’s badging program, all employees who require unescorted
access to the AOA undergo a fingerprint based criminal history record check that is reviewed by
the Executive Director prior to receiving an access control badge. Requirements for employee
background checks are currently identified in Section 6 of the DuPage Airport Authority
Employee Handbook dated May 20, 2015.

In efforts to formalize and enhance existing criminal background check activities, the Authority
desires implementing a new policy and procedure that is consistent with airport security
standards and in compliance with applicable federal law, state law and employer best practices.

Legal counsel has assisted staff in preparing an Appendix to the Employee Handbook that
describes the requirements and procedures for the fingerprint based criminal history record check
process. Such procedures are modeled after airport security regulations set forth in 49 CFR
1542.

Livescan fingerprinting is conducted at the Authority’s badging office located at the
Administration by employee(s) who are licensed to capture and submit fingerprints to the llinois
State Police and Federal Bureau of Investigation.

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:
April 26,2017 Internal Policy and Compliance Committee — this item is being reviewed by the

Committee.

47



REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:
Not applicable.

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:
Not applicable.

LEGAL REVIEW:

The Authority’s general counsel and employment law counsel have developed the proposed
policy and procedure in compliance with applicable federal law, state law and best practices
including compliance with the Fair Credit Reporting Act, Illinois Ban the Box Act, EEOC
guidance and Title VII — Discrimination laws.

ATTACHMENTS:
Q@ Memo from legal counsel.
a Proposed Ordinance 2017-312; An Ordinance Amending the DuPage Airport
Authority Employee Handbook.
o Employee Handbook Appendix — Criminal History Records Check Policy for
Employees Who Require Unescorted Access to the Airport Operations Area.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director and Staff that the Board approve Proposed
Ordinance 2017-312; An Ordinance Amending the DuPage Airport Authority Employee
Handbook.

48



MEMORANDUM

TO: DuPage Airport Authority Policy Committee
FROM: Phillip A. Luetkehans
Brian J. Armstrong
DATE: April 20, 2017
RE: Employee Handbook Amendment re: Criminal History Background Checks

Regarding Unescorted Access to the Airport Operations Area

Pursuant to staff’s request, and in conjunction with staff, we have drafted the attached proposed
amendment to the DuPage Airport Authority Employee Handbook for your consideration. This
is a new policy which implements a criminal history background check procedure for employees
whose position requires he/she have unescorted access to the Airport Operations Area (“AOA”),
which is in accordance with DuPage Airport Authority’s existing “Security” policy as set forth in
Section 6-7 of the current Employee Handbook.

There is no federal regulation or policy applicable to general aviation airports regarding criminal
history background checks of airport employees. However, the TSA has implemented
regulations for criminal background checks of airport employees at commercial aviation airports
(49 CFR § 1542). The attached policy is modeled after those TSA regulations. In sum, the
policy requires that any employee who requires unescorted access to the AOA first be
fingerprinted and pass a criminal history background check to confirm they have not been
convicted of a crime which would disqualify them from eligibility for unescorted access to the
AOA due to legitimate security concerns. The list of disqualifying convictions is identical to
those set forth by the TSA in 49 CFR § 1542. If the criminal history background check reveals
that a candidate for employment has been convicted of a disqualifying offense in the last ten (10)
years, he/she will be ineligible for the position, pending a process by which the applicant may
dispute and/or correct the information contained in the criminal history background check. If a
background check on a current employee reveals a conviction within the last ten (10) years for
such a disqualifying offense, his/her unescorted access will be suspended pending investigation
of the disposition of the case. The employee has an opportunity to correct any misinformation.
Confirmation of a disqualifying conviction will result in termination. Additionally, any current
employee whose unescorted access is suspended, or who is terminated, may request a hearing
with the Executive Director to review the employment action taken against him/her based on the
results of the criminal history background check.

49



ORDINANCE NO. 2017-312

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY EMPLOYEE
HANDBOOK

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority (the "Authority") is a duly authorized and
existing airport authority under the laws of the State of Illinois;

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously enacted an Employee Handbook setting forth
the Authority's policies and practices as it relates to the employees of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Authority deems it to be in the
Authority's best interests to modify the Employee Handbook and to enact a new policy regarding
criminal history background checks for candidates for employment and employees who seek or
have unescorted access to the Airport Operations Area of the airport.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority that the Employee Handbook is hereby amended to include the
procedures for criminal history background checks for candidates for employment and
employees who seek or have unescorted access to the Airport Operations Area attached to this
Ordinance as Exhibit A.

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and

approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed & approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport
Authority this 17th day of May, 2017

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

Ordinance 2017-312

50



DAA EMPLOYEE HANDBOQOK APPENDIX

Criminal History Records Check Policy for Employees Who Require Unescorted Access to
the Airport Operations Area

(a) Criminal History Records Check. In accordance with the Authority’s existing Security
policies, as set forth in the Employee Handbook, each employee who may require or be
permitted unescorted access to the Airport Operations Area (“AOA”) will be subject to a
fingerprint-based criminal history records check (“CHRC”) before being permitted unescorted
access to the AOA. When a CHRC discloses any disqualifying criminal offense (defined below),
the employee will be ineligible to obtain unescorted access authority to the AOA. The Authority
in its discretion may also conduct a CHRC for any employee who already has unescorted access
to the AOA at any time during his/her employment. When a CHRC of an employee who already
is permitted unescorted access to the AOA discloses any disqualifying criminal offense which
was not previously disclosed, the Authority may, subject to the provisions of paragraph (k)
below, revoke or suspend the employee’s unescorted access authority or terminate the
employee’s employment. For purposes of this policy, unless otherwise noted, the phrase
“unescorted access authority” refers only to the AOA.

(b) Disqualifying criminal offenses. An individual has a disqualifying criminal offense if the
individual has been convicted, or found not guilty by reason of insanity, of any of the
disqualifying crimes listed in this paragraph (b)(1)-(b)(28) in any jurisdiction during the ten (10
years before the date of the individual's application for unescorted access authority or a job
position which requires unescorted access authority, or while the individual has unescorted
access authority. The disqualifying criminal offenses are as follows:

(1) Forgery of certificates, false marking of aircraft, and other aircraft registration violation;
49 U.S.C. 46306.

(2) Interference with air navigation; 49 U.S.C. 46308.

(3) Improper transportation of a hazardous material; 49 U.S.C. 46312.

(4) Aircraft piracy; 49 U.S.C. 46502.

(5) Interference with flight crew members or flight attendants; 49 U.S.C. 46504.
(6) Commission of certain crimes aboard aircraft in flight; 49 U.S.C. 46506.

(7) Carrying a weapon or explosive aboard aircraft; 49 U.S.C. 46505.

(8) Conveying false information and threats; 49 U.S.C. 46507.

(9) Aircraft piracy outside the special aircraft jurisdiction of the United States; 49 U.S.C.
46502(b).

(10) Lighting violations involving transporting controlled substances; 49 U.S.C. 46315.

51



(11) Unlawful entry into an aircraft or airport area that serves air carriers or foreign air
carriers contrary to established security requirements; 49 U.S.C. 46314.

(12) Destruction of an aircraft or aircraft facility; 18 U.S.C. 32.
(13) Murder.
(14) Assault with intent to murder.
(15) Espionage.
(16) Sedition.
(17) Kidnapping or hostage taking.
(18) Treason.
(19) Rape or aggravated sexual abuse.
(20) Unlawful possession, use, sale, distribution, or manufacture of an explosive or weapon.
(21) Extortion.
(22) Armed or felony unarmed robbery.
(23) Distribution of, or intent to distribute, a controlled substance.
(24) Felony arson.
(25) Felony involving a threat.
(26) Felony involving—
(1) Willful destruction of property;
(ii) Importation or manufacture of a controlled substance;
(iii) Burglary;
(iv) Theft;
(v) Dishonesty, fraud, or misrepresentation;
(vi) Possession or distribution of stolen property;

(vii) Aggravated assault;

52



(viii) Bribery; or

(ix) Illegal possession of a controlled substance punishable by a maximum term of
imprisonment of more than 1 year.

(27) Violence at international airports; 18 U.S.C. 37.

(28) Conspiracy or attempt to commit any of the criminal acts listed in this paragraph (d).

(c) Fingerprint application and processing.

(1) At the time of fingerprinting, the Authority will provide the individual to be fingerprinted
a Fingerprint Consent Application (attached hereto as Exhibit A) that includes the following:

(1) An express request for authorization to conduct a finger-print based
criminal background check and express authorization for the release of any criminal
history record information that may exist regarding the individual.

(ii) A notification that the individual has the right to challenge any information
disseminated from criminal justice agencies regarding the individual that may be
inaccurate or incomplete pursuant to applicable federal, state, and local law.

(i) A list of the disqualifying criminal offenses described in paragraph (b) of
this section.

(iv) A statement that the individual signing the application does not have a
disqualifying criminal offense.

(v) A statement informing the individual that he/she has a continuing obligation to
disclose to the Authority within 24 hours if he or she is convicted of any
disqualifying criminal offense that occurs while he or she has unescorted access
authority.

(vi) A statement reading, “The information I have provided on this application is
true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and is provided
in good faith. I understand that a knowing and willful false statement on this
application can be punished by fine or imprisonment or both. (See section 1001 of
Title 18 United States Code.)”

(vii) A line for the printed name of the individual.

(viii) A line for the individual's signature and date of signature.

(2) Each individual must complete and sign the application prior to submitting his or her

fingerprints.

53



(3) The Authority will verily the identity of the individual through acceptable primary and
secondary identification (attached hereto as Exhibit B).

(4) The Authority will advise the individual that:

(i) A copy of the criminal record received from the Illinois State Police and/or FBI
will be provided to the individual, if requested by the individual in writing;

(i1) If the Authority decides not to hire the individual or takes other adverse
employment action against an employee based on information contained in a
criminal record received from the Illinois State Police and/or FBI, the Authority
will provide the individual with such information and the contact information for
the agency that provided the criminal record,;

(iii) The individual has the right to challenge any information in a criminal record
that may be inaccurate or incomplete; and

(iv) The Authority’s Airport Security Coordinator (“ASC”) is the individual's point
of contact if he or she has questions about the results of the CHRC.

(5) The Authority will collect, control, and process one set of legible and classifiable
fingerprints under direct observation of the ASC.

(6) Fingerprints may be obtained and processed electronically, or recorded on fingerprint
cards approved by the Illinois State Police and FBI.

(d) Fingerprinting fees. The Authority will pay all fees for fingerprints and the criminal
history records check.

(e) Determination of arrest status. (1) When a CHRC on an individual seeking unescorted
access authority to the AOA discloses an arrest for any disqualifying criminal offense listed in
paragraph (b) of this section and no final disposition is indicated, the Authority must determine,
after investigation, that the arrest did not result in a disqualifying criminal offense before granting
unescorted access authority. If there is no disposition, or if the disposition did not result in a
conviction or in a finding of not guilty by reason of insanity of in one of the offenses listed in
paragraph (b) of this section, the individual is not disqualified under this section.

(2) When a CHRC on an individual with unescorted access authority discloses a previously
undisclosed arrest for any disqualifying criminal offense without indicating a disposition, the
Authority may suspend the individual's unescorted access authority not later than 45 days after
obtaining the CHRC results unless the Authority determines, after investigation, that the arrest did
not result in a disqualifying criminal offense. If there is no disposition, or if the disposition did not
result in a conviction or in a finding of not guilty by reason of insanity of in one of the offenses
listed in paragraph (b) of this section, the individual is not disqualified under this section.

54



(f) Correction of lllinois State Police/FBI conviction records and notification of
disqualification.

(1) Before making a final decision to deny unescorted access authority to an individual, the
Authority must advise him or her that the Illinois State Police and/or FBI criminal record or other
CHRC results discloses information that would disqualify him or her from receiving or retaining
unescorted access authority and provide the individual with a copy of the record disclosing such
information if he or she requests it.

(2) The Authority must notify an individual that a final decision has been made to grant or
deny unescorted access authority.

(3) Immediately following the suspension of unescorted access authority of an individual, the
Authority must advise him or her that the Illinois State Police and/or FBI criminal record or other
CHRC results discloses information that disqualifies him or her from retaining unescorted access
authority and provide the individual with a copy of the information if he or she requests it.

(g) Corrective action by the individual. The individual may contact the local jurisdiction
responsible for the information and/or the Illinois State Police and FBI to complete or correct the
information contained in his or her record, subject to the following conditions

(1) For an individual seeking unescorted access authority, the following applies:

(i) Within 30 days after being advised that the criminal record received from the
Illinois State Police and/or FBI discloses a disqualifying criminal offense, the
individual must notify the Airport Operator in writing of his or her intent to correct
any information he or she believes to be inaccurate. The Authority may, but need
not, accept a copy from the individual of the revised record or a certified true copy
of the information from the appropriate court, prior to granting unescorted access
authority.

(i1) If no notification, as described in paragraph (e)(1) of this section, is received
within 30 days, the Airport Operator may make a final determination to deny
unescorted access authority, which will be considered on a case-by-case basis.

(2) For an individual with unescorted access authority which is suspended pursuant to (e)(2)
of this section, the following applies: Within 30 days after being advised of suspension because of
a criminal record received from the CHRC which discloses a disqualifying criminal offense, the
individual must notify the Authority in writing of his or her intent to correct any information he or
she believes to be inaccurate. The Authority may, but need not, accept a copy from the individual
of the revised record, or a certified true copy of the information from the appropriate court, prior
to reinstating unescorted access authority.

(h) Limits on dissemination of results. Criminal record information provided by the Illinois
State Police and/or FBI or other sources may be used only to carry out this section. No person may
disseminate the results of a CHRC to anyone other than the individual to whom the record pertains,

55



or that individual's authorized representative. All records obtained from the Illinois State Police,
the FBI, or any other agency will be kept strictly confidential.

(1) Recordkeeping. The records required by this section must be maintained in a manner that
protects the confidentiality of the individual. Only direct airport operator employees may carry
out the responsibility for maintaining, controlling, and destroying criminal records.

(j) Continuing responsibilities.

(1) Each individual with unescorted access authority on April 1, 2017, who had a
disqualifying criminal offense in paragraph (b) of this section on or after April 1, 2007, must, by
April 2, 2017, report the conviction to the airport operator and surrender the AOA access medium
to the issuer.

(2) Each individual with unescorted access authority who has a disqualifying criminal offense
must report the offense to the Authority and surrender the AOA access medium to the issuer within
24 hours of the conviction or the finding of not guilty by reason of insanity.

(3) If information becomes available to the Authority indicating that an individual with
unescorted access authority has a disqualifying criminal offense, the Authority must determine the
status of the conviction. If conviction of a disqualifying offense is confirmed, the Authority must
immediately revoke any unescorted access authority and notify the individual in writing of the
revocation and the disqualifying criminal offense discovered by the Authority. The Authority will
immediately provide the individual with the contact information of the agency which issued the
criminal record containing information regarding a disqualifying criminal offense. Upon written
request of the individual, the Authority will provide the individual with the record or information
received by the Authority which discloses a disqualifying criminal offense. The individual may
request a hearing pursuant to section (k) below.

(k) Hearing. When an individual’s unescorted access authority is suspended or revoked, or
an employee is notified he/she will be terminated, following disclosure of a disqualifying criminal
offense, the individual may request a hearing to review the employment action. The individual
must submit a written request for hearing to the Executive Director, which must be received by
the Executive Director no later than seven (7) business days following the Authority’s written
notification to the individual of the employment action. Failure to timely deliver the request for
hearing shall result in waiver of the hearing. Upon receipt of a request for hearing, the Executive
Director shall set a hearing to review the employment action and the nature and status of the
disqualifying criminal offense and record thereof. The Executive Director may act as the hearing
officer or may appoint a designee to be a hearing officer. It shall be the individual’s burden to
establish, by preponderance of evidence that the information received by the Authority that the
individual has been convicted of a disqualifying criminal offense is incorrect or that the Authority
for other reasons should not take the employment action.

56



EXHIBIT A

. ~ Uniform Conviction Information Act (UCIA)
DUPAGE AIRPORT Live Scan Fingerprint Consent Form

Airport Operations Area ("AOA") and Restricted Area Access
Page 1 of 2

Pursuant to the DuPage Airport Authority ("Authority”) Airport Security Program, applicants who have a need for unescorted
access to the Airport Operations Area ("AOA") and/or other Restricted Areas must have a UCIA fingerprint-based criminal
history record information background check. This form captures the information required by the Authority to ensure your
fingerprints are submitted properly. A transaction control number (TCN) will be issued by the Authority at the time of
transmission of fingerprints. The TCN is verification your prints were taken and the Authority must fillin the TCN on this
consent form. The Authority will use the applicant information to help confirm your identification documentation before the
fingerprints are taken. This document also serves as your consent form. The form must be signed in order to authorize the
release of any criminal history record information that may exist. The results of the criminal history background check will be
forwarded to the DuPage Airport Authority for review.

AUTHORITY

Facility Information
Facility Name: Requesting Agency ORI Identifier:
DuPage Airport Authority ILL13632S
Requesting Agency Address:
2700 International Drive, Suite 200 West Chicago, IL 60185

Contact Person Name; Contact E-mail and Phone #:

Jeff Jorgensen jjorgensen@dupageairport.com 630-208-5601
Facility Cosl Center (I any): Transaction Control Number (TCN):

3928

Applicant Information

Name; Gender: Race: Date of Birth (mm/dd/yyyy):
Address: City: ZIP Code:
SSN (optional): Drivers License #; Driver's License State:

Applicant Fingerprint Appointment Information

Live Scan Fingerprint Location: Address:

| 2nd Floor - 2700 International Drive, Suite 200 Wast Chicago, IL 60185
Appointment Date; Appointment Time:

DuPage Airport Authorily Badaing Office
Phone Number:

630-208-5601

Privacy Statement

{, the undersigned, hereby authorize the release of any criminal history record informatlon that may exlst regarding me from any agency,
organization, institution or entity having such information on file. | am aware and understand my fingerprints may be retained and will be used to
check the criminal history record information files of the lllinois State Police and/or the Federal Bureau of Investigation where permitted by law. |
also understand if my photo was taken, my photo may be shared only for smployment or licensing purposes. [ further understand | have the right
to challenge any information disseminated from these criminal justice agencies regarding me that may be inaccurate or incomplete pursuant to
Title 28 Code of Federal Regulation 16.34 and Chapter 20 ILCS 2630/7 of the Criminal ldentification Act.

Applicant Consent

Applicant Name (printed): Date:

Applicant Name (signature):. Date:

57



Live Scan Fingerprint Application

- Criminal History Disclosure Form
DUPAGE AIRPORT Airport Operations Area (“AOA”) and Restricted Area Access
AUTHORITY Page 2 of 2
Applicant Name (Print): TCN:
During the ten (10) year period prior to the date of this application, | have / have not been convicted or

found not guilty by reason of insanity, any of the disqualifying criminal offenses listed below:

(1) Forgery of certificates, false marking of aircraft, and other (15) Espionage.

aircraft registration violation; 49 U.S.C. 46306. (16) Sedition,

{2) Interference with air navigation; 49 U.S.C. 46308. (17} Kidnapping or hostage taking.

(3) Improper transportation of a hazardous material; 49 U.S.C. | (18) Treason.

46312, {19) Rape or aggravated sexual abuse.

(4) Aircraft piracy; 49 U.S.C. 46502. (20) Unlawful possession, use, sale, distribution, or
(5) Interference with flight crew members or flight attendants; | manufacture of an explosive or weapon.

49 U.S.C. 46504. (21) Extortion.

(6) Commission of certain crimes aboard aircraft in flight; 49 {22) Armed or felony unarmed robbery.,

U.S.C. 46506. (23) Distribution of, or intent to distribute, a controlied
(7) Carrying a weapon or explosive aboard aircraft; 49 U.S.C. substance.

46505, (24) Felony arson.

(8) Conveying false information and threats; 49 U.S.C. 46507. (25) Felony involving a threat.
(9) Alrcraft plracy outside the special aircraft jurisdiction of the | (26) Felony involving—

United States; 49 U.S.C. 46502(b). (i) Willful destruction of property;

(10) Lighting violations involving transporting controlled (i) Importation or manufacture of a controlled substance;
substances; 49 U.S.C. 46315. (iit) Burglary;

(11) Unlawful entry Into an aircraft or airport area that serves (iv) Theft;

air carriers or foreign air carriers contrary to established (v) Dishonesty, fraud, or misrepresentation;

security requirements; 49 U.5.C. 46314, {vi} Possession or distribution of stolen property;

(12) Destruction of an aircraft or aircraft facility; 18 U.S.C. 32, {vii) Aggravated assault;

(13) Murder. (viii) Bribery; or

(14} Assault with intent to murder. {ix) lllegal possession of a controlled substance punishable by a

maximum term of imprisonment of more than 1 year.

(27) Violence at international airports; 18 U.S.C, 37.

(28) Conspiracy or attempt to commit any of the criminal acts
listed in offenses (1) — (27).

The information | have provided on this application is true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief and is provided in good faith. | understand that a knowing and willful false statement on this application can be
punished by fine or imprisonment or both. (See section 1001 of Title 18 United States Code.)

| do not have a disqualifying criminal offense listed above.
| further acknowledge that | have a continuing obligation to disclose to the DuPage Airport Authority (“Authority”)

within 24 hours of a conviction of any disqualifying criminal offense that occurs while | have been granted unescorted
access to the Airport Operations Area or other Restricted Areas by the Authority.

Applicant Signature: Date:

58



EXHIBIT B

Identity Verification — Acceptable Primary and Secondary Identification

Employees shall present one selection from List A or a combination of one selection from List B
and one selection from List C.

not yet expired and the

proposed employment is not in
conflict with any restrictions or

limitations identified on thwe form,|

Fasspor Aumicvelh > of 16. School record or report card

1.

Micronesia (FSM) or the Republic of
the Marshall Islands (RM!) with Form
-84 or Form L-94A indicating
nonimmigrant admission under the

the United States and the FSM or RMI

For persons under age 18 who are

unable to present a document
listed above:

USTA . LIST8B LISTC
Documents that Establish [ Documents that Establish Documents that Establish
Both Identity and ! ldentity Employment Authorization
Employment Authorization c'!a AND
1. U.S. Passport or U.5. Passport Card | 1. Driver's icense or IDcard issued by 3 | 1. A Social Security Account Number
- - 5 State or outlying possession of the card, unbess the card includes one of
z :egi . R;:::g Card ;::T&‘) o United States provided it contains a the following restricbons:
.|  photograph or information such as {1} NOT VALID FOR EMPLOYMENT
_ " | name. date of birth, gender, height, eye
3. Foreign passport that contains a ’; cobor, and address (2) VALID FOR WORK ONLY WITH
temporary 1651 stamp or temporary | INS AUTHORIZATION
1-551 printed notation on a machine- | 12 1D card issued by federal, state or local
readable immigrant visa o t agancies or entities, {3) VALID FOR WORK ONLY WITH
gove . . DHS AUTHORIZATION
— ! provided it contains a photograph or
4. Employment Authorization Document |1 information such as name, date of birth, | 2. Certification of Birth Abroad issued
that contains a photograph (Form | gender, height, eye color, and address by the Department of State (Form
1-786) v FS-545)
[3. Schodl ID card with a photograj - - -
5. For a nonimmigrant alien authorized |~ pn 3. Certification of Report of Birth
to work for 3 specific employer | 4. Voter's registration card issued by the Department of State
because of hes or her status: s Us Mhiftary card or draft (Form DS-1350)
E k- N . or record T - 5
a. Foreign passport; and A 4 Onginal or certified copy of birth
b. Form 1-64 or Form 1-04A that has : 6. Military dependent’s 1D card z&ﬁcate g@dlbya&.ale.a
the following: | 7. U.5. Coast Guard Merchant Mariner nty. municipal authortty,
testitory of the United States
{1) The same name as the passport; Card bearing an official seal
and |
| 8. Native Amencan tribal document 8 : :
nonimmigrant status as long as | [3. Driver's license issuedby a Canadian | ¢ ) 5 Gitizen 1D Card (Form I-107)
that period of endorsement has | /|  govemment authority

7. ldentificabon Card for Use of
Resident Citizen in the United
States (Form 178}

Clinic, doctor, or hospital recoed

. |12. Day-care or nursery schoaol record
Compact of Free Association Between |

Empioyment authonzation
document issued by the
Department of Homeland Secunty

59



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Dan Barna j;
Operations and Capital Program Manager

THROUGH: David Bird [ /)
Executive Director

RE: Proposed Resolution 2017-2092; Award of Contract to Voris Mechanical, Inc. for
the Flight Center Boiler Replacement Project

DATE: May 9, 2017

SUMMARY:

The Airport Authority’s 2017 Capital Budget includes a project to replace the hot water heating
boilers for the DuPage Flight Center which are near the end of their service life. The boilers are
the original units which were installed in 1993 during the construction of the Flight Center.

Replacement of the boilers will be with high efficiency, condensing type boilers. The
condensing type boilers will decrease energy usage and provide better control of space
temperatures. The existing boilers operated at 80% efficiency when they were new. The new
condensing boilers will have an efficiency of over 90%.

Boiler operations will be interfaced into the building control system so that the system
may be monitored and controlled remotely. The Authority will also retrofit all variable air
volume boxes which are near the end of their service life and have become expensive

to maintain. This project qualifies for at $70,000 rebate through the Illinois Department of
Commerce and Economic Opportunity (“DCEQO”).

Staff utilized the services of Kluber Architects and Engineers to design this project. The base
bid includes the replacement of two (2) existing boilers with four (4) high efficiency boilers,
building hot water pumps and the retrofit of controls for variable air volume boxes. The
alternate bid includes providing new software and networking for the boilers and the building
automation system.

A solicitation for sealed bids was advertised in the April 8, 2017 edition of the Daily Herald
Newspaper. A mandatory pre-bid meeting was conducted on April 13, 2017. Seven (7) sealed
bids were received and opened at 2:00 p.m. on April 28, 2017. Bid results are as follows:

60



Bidder Base Bid Alternate Bid
Voris Mechanical Inc. 406,970.00 21,780.00
Glendale Heights, IL

C. Acitelli Heating & Piping 435,000.00 21,000.00
Villa Park, IL

The YMI Group 445,500.00 22.,000.00
Elk Grove Village, IL

Monaco Mechanical Inc. 460,800.00 24.400.00
Lisle, IL

Premier Mechanical Inc. 463,000.00 26,000.00
Addison, IL

Amber Mechanical Contractors 468,000.00 22,300.00
Alsip, IL

F.E. Moran, Inc. 495,000.00 22,000.00
Downers Grove, IL

Upon evaluation of the bids, it is apparent that Voris Mechanical Inc. is the low, responsive and
responsible bidder. Kluber and staff conducted a scope of work interview with Voris
Mechanical and confirmed full compliance with project specifications.

Voris Mechanical received several positive references for completion of similar work.

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:

May 17, 2017 Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee — this item is being

reviewed by the Committee.

REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:

In addition, this project qualifies for a $70,000 DCEO rebate.

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:
None.

LEGAL REVIEW:

2017 Capital Budget $572,212

Voris Mechanical Base Bid and Alternate Bid Construction Costs ($428,750)

Owner's Contingency (10%) ($42,875)

Kluber Architects and Engineers

Design and Construction Phase Fees (Not-to-Exceed) ($47,379)
$53,208

Legal counsel has previously drafted the standard contract utilized for this project.

ATTACHMENTS:

® Proposed Resolution 2017-2092; Award of Contract to Voris Mechanical, Inc. for the

Flight Center Boiler Replacement Project.
e Statement of Political Contributions.

61



ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director and Staff that the Board approve Proposed
Resolution 2017-2092; Award of Contract to Voris Mechanical, Inc. for the Flight Center Boiler
Replacement Project.

Existing Boilers

Existing Hot Water Pumps

62



RESOLUTION 2017-2092

Award of Contract to Voris Mechanical, Inc. for the Flight Center Boiler Replacement Project

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority (“Authority”), DuPage County, Illinois is a duly
authorized and existing Airport Authority under the laws of the State of Illinois; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has solicited sealed bids for the replacement of two (2) existing
boilers with four (4) high efficiency boilers, building hot water pumps and the retrofit of controls for variable
air volume boxes at the DuPage Flight Center; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has received and reviewed seven (7) sealed bids on April 28, 2017;
and

WHEREAS, it is apparent that Voris Mechanical, Inc. is the low, responsive and responsible
bidder at a lump sum cost of $428,750 for the Base Bid and Alternate 1 Bid; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Authority hereby deem it to be in the best
interests of the Authority to enter into a Contract with Voris Mechanical, Inc. for the replacement of two (2)
existing boilers with four (4) high efficiency boilers, building hot water pumps and the retrofit of controls for
variable air volume boxes at the DuPage Flight Center; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority is authorized to enter into a
written Contract with Voris Mechanical, Inc. for the Base Bid and Alternate 1 Bid at a total cost not-to-exceed
$471,625, which includes a 10% owner’s contingency; and

FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport
Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director, David Bird to execute said Contract with Voris
Mechanical, Inc. and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said Contract.

This resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this 17th day of May,
2017.

CHAIRMAN
(ATTEST)

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2017-2092

63



DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FLIGHT CENTER BOILER REPLACEMENT
SOLICITATION NO. 2017-0401

STATEMENT OF POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Voris Mechanical Inc.
(name of entity or individual)

PO Box 5488, 370 Windy Point Drive
Glendale Heights IL 60139

(address of entity or individual)

1. List the name and office of every elected official, as that term is defined in the DuPage
Airport Authority's Procurement Policy, whom a contribution, exceeding $150.00 total,
was made to in the 24 months preceding the execution of this form. For each elected
official, provide, in the space provided, the date of the contribution(s), the amount of the
contribution(s) and the form of the contribution(s). If additional space is needed, please
attach a separate sheet of paper containing a full and complete list.

Elected Official Office Date Amount Form
NONE

NOTE: If'this statement of political contributions is being made on behalf of a business
entity or other type of organization, a separate, additional, statement of political
contributions may be required by the DuPage Airport Authority. When making this
statement of political contributions in an individual capacity, you must include
contribution(s) made by your spouse and dependant children. See pages 11-13 of the
Procurement Policy of the DuPage Airport Authority for said requirements,

VERIFICATION:

"I declare that this statement of political contributions (including any accompanying lists
of contributions) has been examined by me and to the best of my knowledge and belief is
a true, correct and complete statement of my (or the entities) political contributions as
required by the Procurement Policy of the DuPage Airport Authority. Further, by signing
this document I authorize the DuPage Airport Authority to disclose this information as it
sees fit."

April 28, 2017 . Kimberley A. Voris, President
(date) (signdture) (title of signer, if a business)

14

64



/NV
DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Dan Barna |
Operations and Capital Program Manager

THROUGH: David Bird
Executive Ditgefo

RE: Proposed Resolution 2017-2093; Authorizing the Execution of a Change Order to
Task Order No. 48 with CH2M for the Project: Hangar Apron Pavement Repair

DATE: May 9, 2017

SUMMARY:

The Airport Authority previously entered into Task Order No. 48 with CH2M for the design of a
hangar apron pavement repair project. This project includes the full depth removal and
replacement of approximately 23 cracked/damaged concrete apron panels at the McDonald’s
Hangar Apron.

Upon development of the project plans and specifications, it was determined that a bid alternate
for the removal and replacement of the full apron (180’ x 130’) would be advantageous.
Additional survey and design is required to document existing grades required to accomplish the
bid alternate.

Staff is in receipt of a Change Order from CH2M in an amount not-to-exceed $9,966.82 to
complete the additional survey and design work. Approval of the proposed Change Order
increases the original Task Order Contract from an amount not-to-exceed $12,700 to an amount
not-to-exceed $22,666.82.

65



TOF b
_a—

"
o CONCTRALTGR BTAGINGS %
3 "m-cn:rr WASISOUT, | OCAT) %
e . 70 uE COORIMATTD WY TH
e P COMATRUC G4 NARAGER <
FEHC IAC TEn BT AGiNG
MANTENANCE BLDG AMEA MAY % L DTATED
o mmﬂ\ sFENaTen ‘l oy :
! oy . A s |
r**"r' 'T""'f"T"r?.‘i_ Vi g.._.-_..: 1 i
‘. P B 3
v i e i ——= ...*_-.‘ T
Vod = _7,‘,'.’7\'}. 5 "
s \“ —— S — =
\ .
‘L E L i g His L. -4 1
L q 1 E“"‘! ? 4 }4 " 1 } 1 l mmu N ]
! | i J PANGAR ;
] It W.M x J 1
i { - -
(JNITED ACTEBE mre
| | | FOM SLAB HEPLACENENT
| | SR {1
by e ACETR T GRAMMNG Gotf)) FOm
2 U]t G TEO ALY 1 ACHEUT
REFER TO DRAW R Gei26a F0R i-- OF PANTMT ST CEN TR [N paasinhas
§ DETMHL OF 5.8 REPLACEVENT |
% ARTAIND CRANATE STHUCTIRES
|

! HANGAH : - __' . HANGAR !

A TR ! & |

1
= — ] ] i fr FLIGHT
1 : J. 'nl'—\...v;o-_-.‘:_L.,-. ] | 1 GEMER
et R — sh Pt ) I RAMP
e == -
[ i e S e B S i | Y i
|l ............... ! (T ! F; r_"
Project Location

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:
March 8, 2017 Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee — this item is being
reviewed by the Commiittee.

REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:

2017 Capital Budget $177,202

Design Phase Task Order No. 48 Not-to-Exceed ($12,700)

Proposed Change Order Not-to-Exceed ($9.966.82)
$154,535.18

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:

None.

LEGAL REVIEW:

Standard form task order will be utilized.

ATTACHMENTS:
e Proposed Resolution 2017-2093; Authorizing the Execution of a Change Order to Task
Order No. 48 with CH2M for the Project: Hangar Apron Pavement Repair.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director and Staff that the Board approve Proposed
Resolution 2017-2093; Authorizing the Execution of a Change Order to Task Order No. 48 with
CH2M for the Project: Hangar Apron Pavement Repair.

66



RESOLUTION 2017-2093

Authorizing the Execution of a Change Order to Task Order No. 48 with CH2M for the Project:
Hangar Apron Pavement Repair

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority, an Illinois Special District (“Authority”), previously
selected CH2M to provide planning, design and construction services for various construction projects
pursuant to the Local Government Professional Services Selection Act, 50 ILCS 510/0.01 et seq.;

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously entered into Task Order No. 48 (the “Task Order”) with
CH2M for design phase services related to the project known as: Hangar Apron Pavement Repair; and

WHEREAS, CH2M has requested approval of a Change Order (attached hereto as Exhibit A) for
additional survey and design required for the development of a construction bid alternate; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has received and reviewed the Change Order and finds same to be in
the best interest of the Authority; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority be authorized to enter into a
written Change Order to the Task Order with CH2M for a total cost not-to-exceed $9,966.82, resulting in
a new Contract total cost not-to-exceed $22,666.82; and

FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport
Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director, David Bird to execute said Change Order with CH2M
and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said Change Order.

This resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its adoption and

approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this 17th day of
May, 2017.

CHAIRMAN
(ATTEST)

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2017-2093

67



//\_dv
TO: Board of Commissioners D U P AG E Al RPO RT
FROM: Mark Doles™ 224 AUTHORITY

Director, Aviation Facilities and Properties

THROUGH: David Bird /[
Executive Director

RE: Authorization of Proposed Resolution 2017-2094, Ratifying the Execution

by the Executive Director of Lease Amendment No. 1 to GSA Lease No.
GS-05B-18903 with the Government of the United States of America

DATE: May 10, 2017

SUMMARY:

Staff worked with the General Services Administration (“GSA”) to provide a lease
amendment for an existing Government tenant. This issue was very fluid and required
the lease amendment to be administratively approved by the Executive Director for
acceptance by the GSA. As such, this request is to ratify the actions of the Executive
Director.

This lease utilizes the GSA standard form U.S. Government Lease for Real Property
(Short Form) previously executed by the Authority for several transactions. The lease is
for a total of 4,900 SF commonly known as 2750 North Aviation Avenue, Bay #2. This
hangar has been occupied by the Government for the last five (5) years and the existing
lease expired 2/28/2017. The new lease is for a total of three (3) years, one (1) year firm.

The terms of the three (3) year lease are as follows:

Tenant: United States of America

Location: 2750 North Aviation Avenue, Bay #2
Commencement: 3/1/2017

Termination: 2/28/2020

Size: 4,900 SF

Rent over the Term: Monthly Rent $3,714 to $3,940 (total rent over firm term $44,568)

Utilities: Included in Rent

68



PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:

May 16, 2012 Board approves Resolution 2012-1662 authorizing execution of
GSA Lease No. GS-GS-05B-18903 with the Government of the
United States of America for Hangar Space.

REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:

Initial Year Lease Revenue: $ 44,568
Lease Revenue over the 3-year Term: $137,755

These proposed lease rates are equal to or above current lease(s) in the building and for
“like” facilities on the Airport.

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:

Not applicable

LEGAL REVIEW:

This is the standard form lease amendment utilized by GSA with the approved business
terms inserted. This U.S. Government Lease for Real Property has been utilized and
executed by the Authority for previous leases with the Federal Government.

ATTACHMENTS:

> Proposed Resolution 2017-2094, Ratifying the Execution by the Executive
Director of Lease Amendment No. 1 to GSA Lease No. GS-05B-18903 with the
Government of the United States of America. Lease Amendment is not attached.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Committee/ Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director and staff that the Board approves
Resolution 2017-2094, Ratifying the execution by the Executive Director of Lease
Amendment No. 1 to GSA Lease No. GS-05B-18903 with the Government of the United
States of America at the May 17, 2017 Board meeting.

69



RESOLUTION 2017-2094
RATIFYING THE EXECUTION BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF GSA LEASE
AMENDMENT NO.1TO GS-05B-18903 WITH THE GOVERNMENT OF THE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012, the DuPage Airport Authority (the "Authority") and
the Government of the United States of America (“GSA”) entered into a lease for the building
commonly known as 2750 North Aviation Avenue, Bay #2 which terminated on February 28,

2017; and

WHEREAS, the Authority, as Landlord, and GSA, as Tenant, have negotiated a Lease
Amendment extending the term of the lease between the parties by three years; and

WHEREAS, due to the expediency necessary to enter into the Lease Amendment with
the GSA, the Executive Director executed said Lease Amendment on behalf of the Authority;

and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the
Authority deem it to be in the best interests of the Authority to enter into Lease Amendment No.
1 to GS-05B-18903 with GSA; and

FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage
Airport Authority hereby ratifies the action of the Executive Director, David Bird, in executing
said Lease Amendment attached hereto as Exhibit A, for and on behalf of the DuPage Airport
Authority and authorizes the Executive Director to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate
the terms of said Lease.

This resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this
17" day of May, 2017.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2017-2094

70



TO: Board of Commissioners D U P AG E AI RPO RT
FROM: Mark Doles Z4) AUTHO RITY

Director, Aviation Facilities and Properties

THROUGH: David Birdﬁ
Executive ector

RE: Authorization of Proposed Resolution 2017-2095, Authorizing the
Execution of Supplement to Lease with the United States of America for
Airport Traffic Control Tower

DATE: May 10, 2017

SUMMARY:

The DuPage Airport Authority (“DAA”) and the United States of America (“USA”),
through the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”), entered into a Lease for Real
Property (“Lease”) in 1992 for the Airport Traffic Control Tower (“ATCT”) located at
DuPage Airport. This Lease provided for a term with renewals that expired September
30, 2016. The original Lease contains a Term Extension provision whereby the FAA has
the “sole and exclusive right to extend this lease beyond September 30, 2016 for a year to
year term for a maximum of 20 years until September 30, 2036, at no rental cost to the
Government...”.

The FAA does not pay rent for ATCTs at airports, but did participate in the original
construction costs for this facility at DuPage Airport and does reimburse for maintenance

costs associated with the facility.

Staff has been working with the FAA and now has a Supplemental Lease Agreement, as
provided for in the original Lease, to extend said Lease through September 30, 2036.

The original Lease contains a provision whereby the FAA reimburses the DAA for
annual maintenance costs associated with the ATCT. This provision remains and is
supplemented with language whereby the DAA will provide quarterly updates to the
FAA on current maintenance costs, and further that any single expenditure exceeding
$3,500 shall be coordinated with the FAA. This provision will allow the FAA to better
plan for the annual reimbursement payment to the DAA that is required within 30-days
after the receipt of the invoice.

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:

February 26, 1992  Board approves Resolution 1992-297, authorizing the DAA to
enter into a Lease for Real Property with the USA for the new

ATCT



REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:

The last 5-years of maintenance costs associated with the ATCT that were reimbursed by
the FAA are as follows:

2012 $28,283
2013 $18,221
2014 $27,210
2015 $ 9,821
2016 _$ 9.002

Total $92,537

The decrease in years 2015 and 2016 is a result of major maintenance/replacement of
aging components that were completed in the 2010-2014 time frame as they reached the

age of 20 years.

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:

Not applicable

LEGAL REVIEW:

This Supplemental Lease Agreement has been reviewed and approved as to form by our
Counsel. A memo from our Legal Counsel is attached.

ATTACHMENTS:

> Attorney Memo
> Proposed Resolution 2017-2095, Authorizing the Execution of Supplement to
Lease with the United States of America for Airport Traffic Control Tower

ALTERNATIVES:

The Committee/Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director and staff that the Board approves
Resolution 2017-2095, Authorizing the Execution of Supplement to Lease with the
United States of America for Airport Traffic Control Tower at the May 17, 2017 Board
meeting.



MEMORANDUM

TO: DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners

FROM: Bruce E. Garner

SUBJECT: Supplement to Lease with the United States of America for Airport Traffic
Control Tower

DATE: May 5, 2017

On April 4, 1992, the Authority and the Government of the United States of America (“USA”)
entered into a lease (the “Lease”) for the Airport Traffic Control Tower building commonly known
as 2710 West International Drive, West Chicago, Illinois and said Lease has been amended from
time to time. That Lease actually expired on September 30, 2016. Pursuant to the Lease terms,
the USA has an option to extend the Lease for maximum period of an additional twenty (20) years
and has initiated that option. The Authority and USA have negotiated a Supplement to the Lease
extending the term of the lease between the parties through September 30, 2036 based on year to
year terms that automatically renew unless the USA notifies the Authority that it does not wish to
renew. While the USA does not pay any actual rent for use of the premises, under the Lease, the
USA pays for all maintenance on the building by reimbursing the Authority’s actual maintenance
costs. Under the extension term, that maintenance reimbursement by the USA will continue, as
will the payment of all utilities by the USA.

In your packets is a resolution authorizing the Executive Director to execute Supplement to Lease
No. DTFA14-92-L-R1433. Our law firm recommends that the Board of Commissioners authorize
the Executive Director to execute the Lease Supplement.

73



RESOLUTION 2017-2095
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF SUPPLEMENT TO LEASE WITH THE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA FOR AIRPORT TRAFFIC CONTROL TOWER

WHEREAS, on April 4, 1992, the DuPage Airport Authority (the "Authority") and the
United States of America (“USA”) entered into a lease (the “Lease”) for the Airport Traffic
Control Tower building commonly known as 2710 West International Drive, West Chicago,
Illinois and said Lease has been amended from time to time; and

WHEREAS, the USA has an option to extend the Lease for a twenty (20) year term and
has initiated that option; and

WHEREAS, the Authority, as Landlord, and USA, as Tenant, have negotiated a
Supplement to the Lease extending the term of the lease between the parties through September

30, 2036; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the
Authority deem it to be in the best interests of the Authority to enter into a Supplement to Lease
No. 35 to Lease DTFA14-92-L-R1433; and

FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage
Airport Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute Supplement No. 35 to
Lease No. DTFA14-92-L-R1433, attached hereto, and authorizes the Executive Director to take
whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said Lease Supplement. -

This resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this
17% day of May, 2017.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2017-2095

74



RESOLUTION 2017-2096

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT WITH WEST CHICAGO PROVIDING FOR THE DEDICATION
FOR PURPOSES OF A PUBLIC ROAD OF CERTAIN REAL ESTATE NEAR
POWIS ROAD AND SMITH ROAD IN WEST CHICAGO, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority (the “Authority”) has recently
acquired approximately 117 acres of property previously known as the Oliver-Hoffman
Parcel near the intersection of Powis and Smith Roads in City of West Chicago (the

“City”); and

WHEREAS, the Oliver-Hoffman Parcel was subject to a prior annexation
agreement with the City; and

WHEREAS, the Annexation Agreement required that the property owner
dedicate a specific portion, which entails approximately 1.5 acres (the “Subject
Property”), of the Oliver-Hoffman Parcel to the City; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is the current owner of the Subject Property and the
Authority’s Board of Commissioners deem it in the best interests of the Authority to
dedicate the Subject Property to the City under the terms of the Intergovernmental
Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 1; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the City’s best interests to
accept the dedication of the Subject Property under the terms of the Intergovernmental
Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Authority hereby approves
the terms of the Intergovernmental Agreement as set forth in Exhibit 1 attached hereto,
and that the Executive Director of the Authority is hereby authorized to take whatever
steps necessary to execute the terms of this Intergovernmental Agreement, including
executing the Plat of Dedication, on behalf of the Authority.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption
and approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

76



Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport
Authority this 17th day of May, 2017.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2017-2096

77



RESOLUTION 2017-2098
AUTHORIZING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE REQUESTING OFFERS TO
PURCHASE AUTHORITY PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority owns a certain parcel of real property
described in the attached Exhibit A (the “Subject Property”) in fee simple interest; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has reviewed the Subject Property and the Authority’s short
and long term needs and finds that the Subject Property is no longer needed by, appropriate to,
required for the use of, or profitable to the Authority and therefore finds that the continued
ownership of the Subject Property is not in the best interest of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has estimated the value of the Subject Property and finds that
said value exceeds $1,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it in the best interests of the Authority and the general
public to negotiate for the sale of all or a portion of the Subject Property, pursuant to 70 ILCS
5/16.1, subject to certain conditions to ensure that the future use of the Subject Property does not
interfere with the objectives of the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT:

1) Pursuant to 70 ILCS 5/16.1, the Executive Director is authorized and directed to take
whatever steps necessary to publish the Authority’s intention to accept offers and
negotiate for the sale of all or a portion of the Subject Property, which the Board hereby
deems to be in the best interests of the Authority considering its future needs and
objectives, subject to the following deed restrictions and other matters:

a. The Purchaser shall file a notice consistent with the requirements of
Federal Aviation Regulation ("FAR") Part 77 (FAA Form 7460-1) prior to
constructing any facility, structure, or other item on the Subject Property and the
Subject Property shall remain in compliance with FAR Part 77 at all times; and

b. The Subject Property shall remain subject the Intergovernmental
Agreement, dated March 22, 2001, by and between the Authority and the City of
West Chicago, Illinois, as amended by Resolution No. 2005-1176 enacted by
Seller on August 8, 2005, and Resolution No. 05-R-0092 enacted by the City of
West Chicago, Lllinois on August 15, 2005, and all subsequent amendments
thereto including, but not limited to Exhibit C to the Intergovernmental

Agreement; and

c. The Subject Property shall at all times comply with the current Section
10.5 of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of West Chicago, Illinois, except as
agreed to in writing by the DuPage Airport Authority; and

d. A restriction shall be placed on the deed conveying the Subject Property
which shall reserve for the Authority all air rights over the Subject Property; and

e. The Purchaser shall execute and deliver to the Authority at closing, an
Avigation Easement acceptable to the Authority which grants to the Authority all
air rights over the Subject Property and waives all claims to said air rights; and

87



2) All

f. The Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions and Easements for
DuPage Business Center recorded in the Office of the DuPage County Recorder,
DuPage County, Illinois on August 10, 2012 as Document Number R2012-
105089 and re-recorded on October 2, 2012 as Document Number R2012-
137015, along with the First Amendment to same recorded on December 24, 2014
as Document Number R2014-121800; and

g. General taxes for the year 2016 and subsequent years; special taxes or
assessments for improvements not yet completed; building lines and building and
liquor restrictions of record; zoning and building ordinances; roads and highways,
if any; private, public and utility easements of record; drainage ditches, feeders,
laterals and drain tile, pipe or other conduit, if any; covenants, conditions and
restrictions of record.

offers to purchase the Subject Property shall be made in writing to the Executive

Director of the DuPage Airport Authority and shall contain an offer amount and a
description of the real property sought to be purchased; and

3) The Executive Director of the DuPage Airport Authority is authorized to negotiate
with any qualified offerors and bring a proposed sales contract to the Board for
consideration and possible action; and

4) The Board reserves the right not to sell any or all of the Subject Property.

This resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Juan E. Chavez

Michael V. Ledonne

Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this
17th day of May, 2017.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2017-2098

88



MEMORANDUM

TO: DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners

FROM: Bruce E. Garner

SUBJECT: Cash Farm Lease with Donald and Beth Young for property located at Smith
Road and Powis Road

DATE: May 5, 2017

The Authority recently acquired the property at Smith Road and Powis Road (approximately 109.4
acres of tillable farm land) from Oliver-Hoffmann via the settlement of the eminent domain case
brought by the Authority. The previous owner had rented the land to Donald and Beth Young
under a cash farm lease. Because the property was just acquired on March 7, 2017, the Authority
has not had sufficient time to request bids for the rental of the farm land. Accordingly, counsel for
the Authority contacted Donald and Beth Young and confirmed that they were interested in renting
the farm land again for another year at the same rate as the previous year.

Chapter 6 of the Authority Code generally requires competitive bidding for leases of Authority
property such as the subject farm land. However, Section 6-8(i) allows for exceptions to the
competitive bidding requirement when an unusual and compelling urgency precludes full and open
competition and the delay in granting said lease would result in serious injury, financial or
otherwise, to the Authority. In this situation, because the Authority only recently acquired the
property, it did not have sufficient time to advertise for bids for a lease of the property. Further, if
the Authority does not lease the subject property for farming purposes, the Authority risks losing
the agricultural assessment for real estate tax purposes and will be taxed at a much higher rate.
Accordingly, this situation fits squarely within the exception found in Section 6-8(i) of the
Authority Code. Section 6-8 requires a memorandum of the exception to be signed by the
approving authority — in the case, the Board - and placed in the lease file.

As indicated, the lease term is for a one year term with no options for renewal. Counsel and
Authority staff have utilized the Airport Authority’s standard Cash Farm Lease form used in all
similar leases with provisions covering such issues as indemnification, insurance, farming
practices, damage and destruction, and environmental indemnity. The tenant has tendered the sum
of $6,455 for the May 1 payment and will pay the additional sum of $25,818 by December 1, 2017.
The effective rate is $295 per acre.

Our law firm recommends that the Board of Commissioners approve an exception to the
competitive bidding requirements pursuant to Authority Code Section 6-8(i) and authorize the
Executive Director to execute the Cash Farm Lease with Donald and Beth Young,

109



MEMORANDUM FROM THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: Lease File
FROM: DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners

SUBJECT: Exception to Competitive Bidding Requirement - Cash Farm Lease with Donald
and Beth Young for property located at Smith Road and Powis Road

DATE: May 35,2017

The Authority recently acquired the property at Smith Road and Powis Road (approximately 109.4
acres of tillable farm land) from Oliver-Hoffmann via the settlement of the eminent domain case
brought by the Authority. The previous owner had rented the land to Donald and Beth Young
under a cash farm lease. Because the property was just acquired on March 7, 2017, the Authority
has not had sufficient time to request bids for the rental of the farm land. Accordingly, counsel for
the Authority contacted Donald and Beth Young and confirmed that they were interested in renting
the farm land again for another year at the same rate as the previous year.

Chapter 6 of the Authority Code generally requires competitive bidding for leases of Authority
property such as the subject farm land. However, Section 6-8(i) allows for exceptions to the
competitive bidding requirement when an unusual and compelling urgency precludes full and open
competition and the delay in granting said lease would result in serious injury, financial or
otherwise, to the Authority. In this situation, because the Authority only recently acquired the
property, it did not have sufficient time to advertise for bids for a lease of the property. Further, if
the Authority does not lease the subject property for farming purposes, the Authority risks losing
the agricultural assessment for real estate tax purposes and will be taxed at a much higher rate.
Accordingly, the Board of Commissioners finds that this situation fits squarely within the
exception found in Section 6-8(i) of the Authority Code.

Executed on this 17th day of May, 2017 on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority.

By: Stephen L. Davis, Chairman

110



RESOLUTION 2017-2099

APPROVING EXCEPTION TO COMPETITIVE BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CASH FARM LEASE WITH DONALD AND
BETH YOUNG FOR AUTHORITY PROPERTY AT SMITH ROAD AND POWIS ROAD

WHEREAS, The DuPage Airport Authority (the "Authority") owns 109.4 acres of tillable
farm land located near the intersection of Smith Road and Powis Road in West Chicago, Illinois (the
“Property”); and

WHEREAS, Donald and Beth Young desire to rent the Property under a Cash Farm Lease
for a one-year term; and

WHEREAS, the Authority, pursuant to Section 6-8(i) of the Authority Code, finds that
said lease is properly excepted from the competition requirements of said Code because an unusual
and compelling urgency precludes full and open competition and the delay in executing said lease
would result in serious injury, financial or otherwise, to the Authority.

WHEREAS, the Authority finds that it is in the best interest of the Authority to enter into
a Cash Farm Lease (attached hereto) with Donald and Beth Young; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority hereby approves the exception to the Authority’s competitive bidding
requirements, as stated herein, and authorizes the execution of the Cash Farm Lease by the
Executive Director, and authorizes the Executive Director to take whatever steps necessary to
effectuate the terms of the Cash Farm Lease.

This resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this
17th day of May, 2017.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2017-2099

111



	Board Packet_5-17-17 (1)
	Board Packet_5-17-17 (2)

